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Worldwide leading supplier of equipment and services to packaging
manufacturers in the folding carton, corrugated board and flexible 
materials industries.

Equipment and services
supplier for printing, 
cutting, folding, gluing 
and other processes 
related to packaging 
manufacturing in folding 
carton, corrugated 
board and flexible 
materials.

Packaging 
manufacturers 
folding carton, 
corrugated board, 
flexible materials.

Producers of industrial 
and consumer goods.

The actors of the packaging market: from equipment to final consumer

BOBST GROUP
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Packaging users
Distributors,  
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Key dAtA

In million CHF

at average exchange rates, current year.

as at 31 december.
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 2007         2008         2009        2010       2011
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In million CHF

Balance sheet
(before appropriation of available earnings)

2007
2008 

(restated) 2009 2010 2011

Assets Non-current assets 608.1 28% 598.5 35% 592.6 34% 645.8 39% 742.2 43%
    Current assets 1'562.8 72% 1'093.4 65% 1'160.1 66% 997.6 61% 975.4 57%
      2'170.9 100% 1'691.9 100% 1'752.7 100% 1'643.4 100% 1'717.6 100%
Liabilities equity 1'035.1 48% 725.2 43% 577.8 33% 577.7 35% 580.8 34%
     Non-current liabilities 319.5 15% 433.7 26% 629.4 36% 508.2 31% 657.2 38%
      Current liabilities 816.3 37% 533.0 31% 545.5 31% 557.5 34% 479.6 28%
      2'170.9 100% 1'691.9 100% 1'752.7 100% 1'643.4 100% 1'717.6 100%

Result

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

Sales 1'743.6 1'633.2 1'055.5 1'280.2 1'270.3

           
Operating result 188.1 86.0 -175.2 61.3 27.5
In % of sales 10.8% 5.3% -16.6% 4.8% 2.2%

         
Net result 138.1 55.9 -160.7 49.3 2.5
In % of sales 7.9% 3.4% -15.2% 3.9% 0.2%
In % of equity 13.3% 7.7% -27.8% 8.5% 0.4%

          
Share income
Share price at the end of the year 80.7 31.8 37.5 43.0 23.3
ePS (note 12) 7.59 3.26 -9.73 2.98 0.03
Price-earnings ratio 10.6 9.7 -3.9 14.4 776.7
dividend paid:           
– total, in million CHF 69.3 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0*
– payout ratio 50.2% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%*
– dividend yield 4.3% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%*
 
       
Number of employees 5'428 5'939 5'488 5'121 5'343
% change compared      
with previous year 3.1% 9.4% -7.6% -6.7% 4.3%

* As per proposal for the appropriation for available earnings (note 28).

evolutIoN oveR FIve yeARS
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Bobst Group’s top line growth benefits from the continued positive 
trend in global packaging markets. However, the impact of the strong 
Swiss franc cancels this gain and necessitates drastic actions within 
the Group transformation program. This program, initiated in January 
2010, begins to show its first positive results:  
“Back to Black for 2011 and improved profitability for 2012”.

The year in brief: 2011 showed a positive trend in all our packaging sectors: folding carton, 
corrugated board and flexible materials. Levels of activity and dynamism differ by regions. 
Innovations and close customer relationships are creating strong added value. Currency 
turbulence has created particular challenges for the Swiss export industry. Since the 
beginning of 2011, the Euro and the US Dollar have shown very high volatility, prior to the 
intervention by the Swiss National Bank. Our Swiss entity had to, and will, adjust its 
structure and industrial footprint very significantly. Functions with low added value are being 
outsourced as part of the Group strategy. Research, innovation, development and 
manufacturing of high-end products will be concentrated in Mex/Switzerland and in our 
European facilities, while customers will also be offered very competitive entry level 
equipment made in China, India and Brazil.

In January 2011, we acquired 65% of Gordon Ltd. This move reinforces Bobst Group’s 
strategy and presence in China and demonstrates our determination to become a leading 
player in this growing market. This should allow us to consolidate our market position,  
grow in China and play a role in the entry level segment worldwide – an important step in  
the implementation of our Group strategy. 

Value creation – mid- to long-term financial targets
With its current asset structure, Bobst Group creates value when its operating margin is 
higher than 6–7%. On this basis we have set mid- to long-term financial targets designed to 
help us fulfil our financial ambitions and create value: sales of CHF 1.3–1.4 billion due  
to organic growth at constant exchange rates, a return on capital employed (ROCE) of 9–12%, 
and an operating profit margin of at least 7%. The equity ratio should be around 35% of  
total balance sheet and the dividend payout ratio between 30–50% of consolidated profit.

To create value we will also continue to invest in innovation and to reinforce our product 
development activities, which will allow us to seize new business opportunities. More value 
will be created by an enhancement of our market presence and an expansion of our product 
portfolio in India, China, and other emerging markets. The development of our Service 
business, where we will strengthen parts sales and expand customer service, will contribute 
to it as well. These objectives are in line with the pillars of our strategy as described thereafter.

DEAR 
SHAREHOLDERS
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Charles Gebhard and Jean-Pascal Bobst

Group transformation program
The acceleration of the Group transformation program, triggered by the exchange rate crisis, 
reinforces the program’s original objectives. These objectives focus on four key pillars: 
— Operational excellence, through the development of technological platforms and an 

organization by Business Units leading to clear responsibilities for individuals and 
simplification of the organization.

— Growth, through the development of our Business Unit Services and increasing growth 
in emerging countries (amongst others through our acquisition of Gordon Ltd).

— Effective organization, made possible by the establishment of “lean” methodologies and 
tools, starting with production but eventually spreading to all services in the organization. 
A rightsizing of the industrial footprint in Europe is also part of this effort towards 
effective organization. Increased profitability will come from the synergies achieved 
by having all Bobst SA activities regrouped on the Mex site (project TEAM) and from 
common processes achieved through the roll-out of SAP across the Group.

— Strong leadership, developing, retaining and searching for people who share our business 
values, can lead change and implement our strategies.  

Letter to our shareholders
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The Group transformation program is generating CHF 85 million of savings run rate 2012, 
and the additional actions launched in November 2011 will improve profitability by another 
CHF 60 million run rate 2013, thus meeting the Group’s aspiration of “profitability and value 
creation”.

Branding
Our new branding (described on pages 22–23) will demonstrate our values and strengths. 
Our strategy is to unite products with premium technology, demonstrate first quality 
service support and become a more customer-driven organization.

Group key figures: results 2011 better than forecasted; 
implementation of measures to improve profitability.

Order bookings for machine sales
During the first half-year, order entries were higher than the same period of 2010, but the 
increase was offset by the negative exchange rate influence. The second half saw a reduction 
of activities mainly due to the European debt crisis as well as to the exchange rate volatility, 
resulting in a backlog decrease of 5% in December 2011, compared to December 2010. 

Turnover
Consolidated sales for the full year 2011 amounted to CH 1.27 billion, resulting on one hand 
from an increase in organic and acquisition-driven sales of CHF 109 million and on the other 
from a decrease of CHF 119 million due to exchange rate movements. The organic growth alone 
represents an increase of CHF 76 million.

The geographical distribution shows a positive sales trend for the Asia & Oceania zone, 
which represents 20.8% of total turnover (2010: 19.4%). The Europe and Americas zones show 
a decrease due to the negative exchange rate impact.

Sales achieved by the Business Unit Sheet-fed and Business Unit Web-fed are further 
recovering from the downturn. Compared to the previous year, the negative exchange rate is 
offsetting services and spare parts activity and the increase in volume. 

The consolidated net result amounts to CHF +2.5 million, which is better than previously 
announced. Given the ongoing challenging market environment and the capital expenditures 
relating to the transformation of the Group, the Board of Directors will not be proposing  
a dividend to shareholders at the Annual General Meeting on April 26, 2012.

37.indd   4 27.03.2012   08:59:52
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Maturing bond
In May 2011, Bobst Group issued a CHF 150 million, 2.75% bond maturing on May 5, 2014. We 
used the favorable interest rate environment to refinance our CHF 120 million, 4.125% bond, 
which was coming to due date in July 2011. Refinancing was not absolutely necessary but it 
provides the Company with a safety cushion for the next three years and is in line with our 
balance sheet strategy. 

Board of Directors re-elections
At the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of April 26, 2012, the mandates 
of Messrs. Michael W.O. Garrett, Alain Guttmann and Hans Rudolf Widmer will come to an end. 
All three will be proposed for re-election.

Outlook
The economic situation in industrialized countries will remain uncertain for the foreseeable 
future. While emerging countries will continue to grow, the Swiss franc situation will 
continue to put pressure on exports. 

In our mature markets, America remains active in new projects and is willing to invest. 
Europe tells a different story, as it needs clear direction to support the economy and give 
companies the confidence to invest. Bobst Group, while not neglecting traditional markets, 
is turning to key growth drivers in Asia, namely China and India. Within a few years the 
positive trend in these markets will offset volume reductions in industrialized countries. 
Service business will mature and continue to grow.

Common values and diversity create bonds between people
First of all, we want to thank all Bobst Group employees for their dedication, high level of 
professionalism and commitment to success. Our Group is made up of employees from 
various geographic, cultural and linguistic backgrounds whose ability to work together as  
a team is one of our great strengths. This diversity and this unity prove particularly valuable in 
challenging times.

Our gratitude also goes to our shareholders, banks, and leasing companies which have 
given us such steadfast support over the long term. Thanks also to our customers for their 
trust in our products. Their confidence in us encourages us to excel in serving their needs.

Charles Gebhard  Jean-Pascal Bobst
Chairman of the Board  Chief Executive Officer 

        

Letter to our shareholders
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QUALITY
Premium 
Precision
Power
Performance

ALL ABOUT
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Sustainability
Service 
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We want to play a key role in the success  
of our customers
With our know-how at the service of the packaging 
industry, we are able to leverage our technologies 
and expertise to enable our customers to add 
value to paper, paperboard, corrugated board and 
flexible materials. We will serve related fields 
where our contribution creates a clear customer 
advantage.

We strive to fulfill the needs of a broad and diverse 
customer base. Ranging from large international 
customers to local specialized niche players, they 
will find in us their partner of choice.

Our customers face increasing challenges in 
productivity, cost efficiency, quality, flexibility and 
innovation. Our solutions play a key role for them 
in meeting these challenges successfully. We 
provide tailored support throughout the entire 
life cycle, including supplying the equipment,  
the systems, and the services our customers need.

We create sustainable, long-term value  
for all our stakeholders
Our efforts are founded on a “balanced stakeholder 
approach”. The interests of our customers, 
shareholders, employees, local communities, 
suppliers and financial institutions need to  
be satisfied equally to the best of our abilities.

We believe that sustainable, long-term value 
creation for all our stakeholders is only achievable 
through a superior position in the market. 
Therefore we aim to become or remain Number 1 
in each of the businesses we are active.

Our measure of success is internal business 
value creation. By optimizing return on capital 
employed, we deliver long-term superior 
shareholder return.

To help our customers worldwide to supply safe, cost-efficient, 
environmentally friendly and appealing packaging: this is our mission.

MISSION & VISION
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MISSION & VISION
The Bobst Group way: specialists with  
a strong bond
Our individual businesses are leading specialists 
in their fields. Combining these businesses gives 
our customers a twofold advantage:

By integrating individual production processes 
and applying our way of doing business to each  
of our entities, we ensure the Group achieves more 
than the sum of its parts.

Our businesses adhere to a common standard 
ensuring that we provide the best performance/
cost ratio in the industry. To make this happen, 
we seek our competitive advantage along five 
dimensions:

—  People excellence
Recruit and develop the best people in the 
industry.

—  Leading innovation 
Introduce the right products and services, by 
innovating and bringing strong added value.

—  Long-term partnership 
Engage with our customers, constantly looking 
for opportunities to improve for mutual benefit.

—  Continuous cost efficiency improvements
Create the opportunity to provide the best 
customer solutions and to invest for the future.

—  Setting industry quality standards 
Maintain rigorous processes to ensure our
high standards.

While spanning the globe, our activities remain 
close to our customers
The world’s growing population has a right to access 
top quality goods. We play a pivotal role in making 
these goods available through safe, cost-efficient, 
environmentally friendly and appealing packaging.

Being a global player, we acknowledge that local 
markets have different needs. Wherever our 
strengths can be applied, we respond to these 
needs by developing the appropriate products  
and services for local requirements, while also 
building long-term relationships at a local  
level respecting different cultures and languages.

Mission & vision
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min. 7%1.3–1.4

~35%30–50%

9–12%

Assumptions: Euro 1.20 / Dollar 0.90; current level of global economy.

Mid- to long-term financial targets

Turnover (in billion CHF) Operating profit margin

Equity ratio

Return on capital employed (ROCE)

Payout ratio

37.indd   16 26.03.2012   17:59:49



17

Basis of strategy
The strategy is based on:
—  the evaluation of the position of the Group 

in its existing markets and its potential 
development to become or remain Number 1;

—  the opportunities for further expansion  
both in the markets already served as well as  
in new markets.

Four strategic objectives have been defined

1. Grow within the core business
The existing business offers interesting growth 
potential which has, at this stage of the Group’s 
development, still not yet been fully leveraged. 
The expansion of the service offering (with Business 
Unit Services) and the penetration into emerging 
markets through further development of products 
in the medium segment (high quality, simple, lower 
investment equipment) and in the entry segment, 
are the main directions offering still untapped 
growth opportunities.

2. Achieve operational excellence
A number of fields with further potential for strong 
improvement in the Group’s internal processes 
have been identified: get maximum technology 
synergies within product lines (R&D); enforce 
innovation, enable use of platforms, modules and 
common components; use of same technologies 
to allow the Group to improve each Business Unit’s 
profitability; develop stronger market presence; 
and push decision making near customers’ demand.

3. Effective organization (Modus operandi)
Markets’ demands as well as customers’ 
expectations create quite a complex challenge  
for the Group to address. The main focus will  
be to simplify structures, harmonize core processes 

through Lean production, supply chain, purchasing, 
and leverage the size of the Group wherever 
worthwhile. A Shared Service Organization will 
drastically simplify the back office.

4. Culture of Continuous Improvement 
People are key to the success of the company.  
To sustain employee motivation a culture of 
excellence and respect is promoted and lived. 
Processes, technology and services are 
maintained at the highest levels, through a mindset 
of continuous improvement. Established ways  
are evaluated and challenged, allowing state-of-
the-art practices to be adopted. Everyone’s 
objective is to reach operational excellence and 
this perpetual quest will continue to ensure 
business success.

Concrete plan of action laid out
These four strategic objectives have resulted in  
a number of planned initiatives, under Group 
transformation program, which will take place in 
the years to come.

This set of actions will bring the Group into  
a state of incomparable efficiency in the industries 
it serves, making it both the preferred supplier  
of equipment and services and one of the most 
attractive investments among the listed 
engineering companies active in the graphic arts 
and packaging industries. This is the ambition  
of the Group.

The Group maintains its strategy and confirms its management approach  
in the medium and long term.

STRATEGY

Strategy
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Customer segments

Business Unit Sheet-fed

Product ranges:
Bobst
Asitrade
Martin 
BHS*

Business Unit Services

All product ranges  
of the Group

Corporate and transverse functions

Structural organization of the Group

Folding Carton Industry Corrugated Board Industry Flexible Materials Industry

Our customers are packaging manufacturers, specialized in the folding carton, corrugated board, 
and flexible materials industries.

Bobst Group, supplier of equipment and services for the printing, cutting, folding, and gluing as well 
as other processes linked to the manufacturing of packaging, is organized by technological processes, 
in three Business Units (BU):

BU Sheet-fed: combines the 
product lines for the folding 
carton and corrugated board 
industries.

BU Web-fed: combines the 
product lines for the flexible 
materials industry and the 
Web-fed Solutions product 
line for the folding carton 
industry.

BU Services: with a world wide 
network of service centers, 
provides spare parts to 
customers in the packaging 
industries, and offers a  
full range of solutions allowing  
them to get the most from  
their equipment.

Business Unit Web-fed

Product ranges:
Bobst
Fischer & Krecke
General 
Kochsiek
Rotomec

The sales organization is dedicated by industries and is aligned with the activity of our customers. 
* Strategic partner.
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Bobst Group’s principle is to be as close as possible to its customers  
and their specific needs. For each of the three Business Units, from 
Research & Development to sales, including all the transverse functions, 
the Group applies common rules which allow it to optimize all its activities.

Several principles on key success factors have 
guided the Board of Directors and management  
in their decisions concerning the organization  
of the Group.

Recognizing the importance of the specific 
characters of the Group activities, three Business 
Units, each with its own management, have been 
created in 2010.

In addition to this, Corporate functions such  
as Group Finance, Technology Management, 
Human Resources, Communication, Information 
Technology, Legal, Controlling and risk 
management, are centrally managed, and have 
the responsibility to provide support to  
the organization, and ensure coherence within 
the Group. 

The organization is managed based on  
the following principles:
—  the simplification of processes and 

management will be applied; developing the 
appropriate modus operandi to implement  
a continuous improvement philosophy;

—  the speed of adaptation to changing markets 
and business environments being of utmost 
importance, the accountability and the 
decision-making are placed closer to the 
markets;

—  the quality of the personnel and management 
is recognized as one of the main assets of  
the Group. For this reason, the organization is 
designed to provide a challenging and dynamic 
environment in order to attract and retain the 
most competent people;

—  the structure chosen takes into account that 
the Group will increasingly focus its internal 
activities on specific value adding functions and 
that all of the back office will be organized in 
regional operational centers.

This organizational structure allows the Group, in  
a changing environment, to rapidly anticipate 
market needs and transform them into equipment 
and service innovations. At the same time, it offers 
very close local presence, by industry, to customers 
worldwide, thereby strengthening exchanges in 
the culture of each country.

ORGANIZATION

Organization
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Bobst Group has production facilities in eight countries, as well 
as a sales and services network with offices in more than fifty  
countries. These strong foundations support the Group’s position  
of leadership in its various Business Units. The motivation behind  
the sales and services organization is the desire to assist customers 
in their continuous pursuit for better quality, higher productivity  
and lower operational costs.

Legend
 Group production sites with

 sales and services
 Group companies and  

 representative offices for  
 sales and services

 Agencies and representatives 
 for sales and services

 Companies for reconditioning
 of equipment

 Strategic partner

GLOBAL 
NETWORK
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Global network

Americas Europe Africa Asia/Oceania
1 Argentina 9 Austria 31 Egypt 35 Australia 
2 Brazil  10 Belgium 32 Morocco 36 China  
3 Chile 11 Croatia 33 South Africa 37 India  
4 Mexico 12 Cyprus 34 Tunisia 38 Indonesia  
5 Paraguay 13 Czech Republic 39 Israel 
6 Peru 14 Denmark  40 Japan  
7  Rep. of El Salvador 15 Finland 41 Korea 
8 United States 16 France  42 Malaysia  

17 Germany   43 New-Zealand 
18 Greece 44 Pakistan 
19 Italy    45 Philippines 
20 Latvia 46 Saudi Arabia 
21 Poland 47 Singapore 
22 Portugal 48 Thailand  
23 Romania 49 Turkey 
24 Russia 50 United Arab Emirates 
25 Serbia 51  Vietnam 
26 Spain  
27 Switzerland 
28 Sweden 
29 Ukraine 
30 United Kingdom    
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BOBST GROUP IS ORGANIZED INTO 
THREE BUSINESS UNITS: SHEET-FED, 
WEB-FED, AND SERVICES. 

FROM 2012, THE ACTIVITIES OF THESE 
THREE BUSINESS UNITS WILL BE 
UNITED UNDER ONE BRAND: BOBST.

Bobst Group SA  Annual report 2011

BUSINESS
UNITS
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23One Group, one brand

Strategic consolidation
The packaging industry is growing globally due to 
the increase in consumption among emerging 
countries. New technologies and globalization push 
forward the need for investment and innovation. 
These tough market conditions require a fit and 
strong organization. Bobst Group has therefore 
launched a comprehensive Group transformation 
program. 

An important part of this strategic initiative  
is the consolidation of the historically grown 
brand portfolio under one single brand: BOBST.

Positive image transfer
For decades, the BOBST brand has been a byword 
for premium products in the folding carton and 
corrugated board industries. With the acquisition 
of further renowned brands both in these 
industries and in the flexible materials area, BOBST 
now has an excellent reputation in all three 
industries. 

The time has come to capitalize on this positive 
image transfer and to combine all of the  
Group’s products and competencies under one 
strengthened BOBST brand.

Benefits on three levels

Clarity for customers
In the future, all products will be marketed under 
the BOBST brand, with the BOBST logo used 
exclusively for branding activities of the Bobst 
Group and its affiliates. 

Former company brands such as Asitrade, 
Martin, Fischer & Krecke, General, Rotomec, 
and Kochsiek will remain present as product line 
names. 

The unification of the brand structure will help 
to clearly communicate the product portfolio to 
customers. At the same time it will allow BOBST 
to rationalize its marketing and communication 
approach by delivering a single message to the 
market. 

The organizational structure of the Bobst Group, 
the legal name of Bobst Group SA and the  
legal entities of the Group companies will remain 
unchanged. Eterna and Brausse, well known in 
China, will continue to use their own brand names.

Increasing communication efficiency
Bringing all marketing activities under one brand 
will consolidate Group companies’ strengths. 

By reducing the brand portfolio, the Bobst Group 
will significantly save on costs, will facilitate 
implementation, and increase impact. In the future, 
all budgets spent on marketing and communication 
will be focused on one single brand. This will not 
only be more economical than maintaining eight 
different brands with eight different visual 
identities, it will also lead to a focused perception 
in the market. 

Each branded touchpoint will be attributed  
to BOBST, thus establishing a singular market 
presence and maximizing the image transfer 
between all the communication activities of the 
Group.

Strengthening the organization
Branding is more than a marketing tool. BOBST 
has taken the conscious decision to also 
strengthen and consolidate its internal organization, 
and to encourage teams all over the world to 
engage themselves in pursuit of a common goal. 

Investing in a coherent branding solution 
shows a sign of confidence. 

The united and refreshed look signals a strong 
belief in the potential of Group companies and a 
commitment to success and technical leadership.

The logo is a natural evolution of our well 
established BOBST logotype and of the globally 
introduced Group symbol, the red square.

Business Units
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24 Results of the Business Unit Sheet-fed
In million CHF

Sales Operating result

at average exchange rates, current year. as % 
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Adjusting a piece of equipment  
on a BOBST EXPERTCUT 106 PER 
Autoplaten® press.
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Across the folding carton and corrugated board industries, Bobst Group,  
with its Bobst, Asitrade, and Martin product lines, is considered a trusted 
partner and a driver of innovation. 

Through its Business Unit Sheet-fed, the Group provides equipment for flexo 
printing, in-line laminating, flat-bed and rotary diecutting, folding and gluing, 
hot foil stamping, and in-line flexo-folding-gluing, as well as peripheral 
equipment.

BUSINESS  
UNIT SHEET-FED

Business Unit Sheet-fed
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Market evolution
The global packaging industry is growing due to 
increasing consumption and the development of 
more environmental friendly packaging, which 
requires sophisticated technologies. 

Despite a challenging global economy, the 
Business Unit (BU) Sheet-fed still saw growth 
from its folding carton and corrugated board 
industry customers. Such signs are encouraging.

As expected, the economic climate has  
seen converters face continued pressure on their 
margins, leading them to demand greater 
efficiencies from their production equipment. 

The BU performed well in emerging markets 
such as China, India and South America. In 
particular, the Chinese and Indian markets have 
advanced well due to their need for automated 
folding carton production, driven largely by export 
markets. 

The BU Sheet-fed continues to provide 
pioneering solutions that deliver this and which 
also help customers differentiate themselves 
from their competition.

Evolution of the product range
The BU Sheet-fed continues to innovate, aiming  
to continually exceed customer expectations. 

In 2011 the BU was granted twelve patent 
applications and is unique in being able to tailor its 
machines to customers’ precise business needs. 

The new Multi-Fold application, developed for 
BOBST Martin flexo-folder-gluers (FFG), broadens 
the packaging scope of the machine and enables 
its better utilization. With its large diecutter, 
converters can convert two, three, and even four 
ups (blanks) in one pass.

The BU continues to develop common platforms 
and modules, which will enable it to cover a range 
of products from entry level to high technology. 

During 2011, the BU launched BOBST ACCUCHECK 
– the world’s first built-in zero-fault quality control 
device for folder-gluers. 

With this new device, manufacturers can 
improve quality, performance, and productivity 
with “100% quality” output. In addition, the BU 
introduced BOBST GYROBOX – the first device for 
the corrugated board industry which can fold and 
glue a blank on all four sides in one pass, creating 
new possibilities for packaging designers.

Main events
Three key events were held in Mex in Switzerland – 
the launches of BOBST ACCUCHECK and of 
BOBST GYROBOX, and a “Hot-foil Days” event, 
presenting the BOBST MASTERFOIL 106 PR  
to German-speaking customers and media. 

The BU Sheet-fed also hosted open houses  
in other Group locations around the world  
to strengthen its relationships with customers.

In parallel, and in order to develop new business 
opportunities, the BU Sheet-fed participated  
in a significant number of industry events, both  
in mature and emerging countries. These  
included FEFCO and VDW in Germany, as well  
as China Print.

Production sites
The BU Sheet-fed deployed a new production 
strategy at its six sites, focusing each on  
specific product ranges. Along with this, lean 
manufacturing was initiated in Shanghai, 
Itatiba, and Lyon.

As part of the TEAM project (Tous Ensemble  
à Mex), manufacturing functions began the  
move from Lausanne to Mex, a transition that will  
be completed during 2012. The implementation  
of lean manufacturing at the Mex site progressed 
well and is showing the first positive results. 

In order to support the Group’s transformation 
objectives of streamlined internal processes  
and increased profitability, the BU Sheet-fed was 
reorganized by function during 2011, with an even 
more customer-centric focus. Non-core activities 
will be outsourced in order to cut costs and  
ensure that permanent employees are focused  
on essential business functions.
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BOBST Asitrade MASTERFLUTE –  
the new, high performance, laminator 
with the unique Power Aligner 
System for laminating light weight 
sheets onto single face corrugated.

BOBST ACCUCHECK – the world’s 
first built-in zero-fault quality 
control device for folder-gluers.

Business Unit Sheet-fed
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Results of the Business Unit Web-fed
In million CHF

Sales Operating result

at average exchange rates, current year. as % 
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500

1000

0

247.1

2009 2010

304.1

2011

310.4 -43.0

-17.4%

6.1 10.2

2.0% 3.3%

0

100

-100

2009 2010 2011

as % 

of sales.

37.indd   28 26.03.2012   18:00:31



Starting the production 
cycle on a BOBST General 
K3000 metallizer.
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Through its Bobst, Fischer & Krecke, General, Kochsiek, and Rotomec 
product lines, Bobst Group is seen as a market leader and key innovator 
 in the flexible materials industry.
 
The Group’s Business Unit Web-fed provides equipment for flexo  
printing, coating and laminating, gravure printing, in-line converting,  
and metallization, as well as register and quality control equipment.

BUSINESS  
UNIT WEB-FED

Business Unit Web-fed
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Market evolution
2011 saw levels of activity in the flexible materials 
market similar to those prior to the worldwide 
economic crisis. This mainly resulted from the 
majority of products packaged in flexible materials 
being foods, which fulfill a basic need among  
the fast growing populations of emerging countries.

Customers have benefitted both from this 
market recovery and from actions they took during 
the downturn. In mature markets, the big  
groups and the small/medium-sized companies 
have focused on reducing their production  
costs by investing in high technology equipment. 
Conversely, in emerging countries, converters 
have invested in more basic machines to rapidly 
increase capacity at the best possible cost/
performance ratio.

In spite of a more favorable context, the market 
remains very competitive and, in view of the 
uncertainty of the world economy, equipment 
suppliers still pursue a strategy of volumes to  
the detriment of margins. Thanks to its rich product 
mix, the Business Unit (BU) Web-fed was able to 
benefit from the situation, increasing its worldwide 
market share.

Evolution of the product range
The Business Unit Web-fed continued to invest  
in the development of new products with key 
differentiation features. 

Pinhole Detector, a new and exclusive system 
from the General product line, aimed at the most 
sophisticated markets, is cleverly able to detect 
metallization faults automatically. 

A complete new range of flexographic machines 
was launched by the BU, based on the BOBST 
Fischer & Krecke FP 15 and FP 16 models.

After announcing its re-entry to the special 
coating business, the BU Web-fed launched a new 
generation of high speed silicone machines from 
the Rotomec product line, the first being sold to  
a leading company in France. 

For the gravure printing of tobacco packaging, 
the BU launched two new platforms, the BOBST 
RIVIERA and BOBST DELTA, each equipped with  
a full range of converting solutions.

Main events
The BU Web-fed organized a number of open 
houses in response to customer requests and  
to demonstrate the value of its solutions. 

One event, with sustainability as the main 
theme, was held at the San Giorgio site in Italy, 
and featured the BOBST Rotomec RS 4003 MP HS 
gravure line and the BOBST Rotomec CL 850 
multi-technology laminator. A detailed article on 
the subject can be read on pages 37 and 38 of  
the Sustainability report (Sustainable technologies 
and biodegradable packaging take center stage). 

A special day was organized at Panther, a 
customer in Germany, to present a new generation 
of BOBST Fischer & Krecke FP 96 flexo presses 
aimed at large sized pre-printed liner board 
applications. 

BU Web-fed seminars were successfully 
organized for key French and Russian customers.

In order to develop new business opportunities, the 
BU Web-fed also participated in a significant number 
of industry events, both in mature and emerging 
countries. These included European Rotogravure 
Association (ERA) seminars, Flexographic 
Technical Association (FTA) conferences in the 
USA, and local exhibitions in different countries 
such as Printpack in India, Chinaplas in Shanghai, 
Rosupack in Russia, and Brazilplast in Saõ Paulo, 
which was coupled with an open day showing  
a BOBST Fischer & Krecke FP 15-S made in Brazil. 

Production sites
At the three BU Web-fed sites, each specialized in 
different product ranges, common processes 
were introduced and volumes increased through 
module synergy. In Germany, the manufacturing  
of parts was outsourced, external stocks of 
assembly parts were reduced and stocks brought 
in-house, a specific stock for spares parts was 
created, and all activities concentrated on one site. 

As a result of this approach, the BU Web-fed 
has been able to increase performance, and optimize 
the utilization of all sites.
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New BOBST Fischer & Krecke 20SIX CS 
flexographic press – made for flexible 
packaging printing.
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BOBST Rotomec RS 4003 MP HS 
high speed rotogravure printing 
press for flexible materials.

Business Unit Web-fed
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Results of the Business Unit Services
In million CHF
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Manufacturers around the globe rely on Bobst Group to provide the service 
products they need to get the most from their equipment. 

With a worldwide network of service centers, the Business Unit Services 
is able to deliver a full range of solutions, from spare parts, preventive 
maintenance and retrofits, to full machine upgrades. This service center 
network reflects the Bobst Group commitment to deliver the best  
performing customer service in the industry.

BUSINESS  
UNIT SERVICES

Performed by BU Services 
specia lists, equipment audits 
highlight items that require 
attention and indicate a machine’s 
suitability for upgrade.

Business Unit Services
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Market development
The demand for Business Unit (BU) Services 
products continues to grow, especially for 
measures that increase machine availability and 
productivity. This demand varies region by  
region, with Latin America and Asia generating the 
highest demands in 2011, while mature markets 
such as Europe and the United States were more 
conservative. 

This trend is expected to continue into 2012. 
Accordingly, service capacities will be reinforced 
in mature markets, and the BU Services  
will continue to develop its service capability in 
emerging markets.

The Africa & Middle East region has been deeply 
affected by the various political crises there  
and, consequently, business activity has suffered, 
although levels are expected to recover in 2012 
and return to those of previous years.  

New service product developments
Two years after its inception, the BU Services is 
continuing to develop according to its stated 
strategy. In 2011, the BU concentrated on reducing 
lead times, increasing parts availability, and 
developing new products to increase the productivity 
of customers’ machines. 

One major element of this strategy was the 
opening in December 2011 of a European distribution 
center. In addition, a major reorganization took 
place at the Lausanne site in Switzerland, in order 
to align the organization with the strategy.

New improvement programs were successfully 
launched in 2011, such as Power Register, which 
increases quality and productivity on diecutters, 
and Dialube, an oil filtering system. 

2011 also saw BU Services investing in the 
development and industrializing of its service 
products in order to provide a superior offering. 
These will be introduced to the market at 
Drupa 2012.

Organization and BOBST service centers
To streamline internal processes and ensure clearer 
responsibilities, BU Services has been reorganized 
into three functional units – Marketing & Sales, 
Technical Services, and Supply Chain Management 
Parts. This organization was introduced in all 
BOBST service centers and Group manufacturing 
sites during the year. Additionally, and in order  
to better serve customers, the BU now operates 
twelve regions rather than ten. The additional 
BOBST service centers focus on the major markets 
of Germany, Italy, France and Iberian Peninsula, 
and the CIS and Eastern Europe. With this move, 
the BU expects to improve service quality levels 
and raise overall market coverage.

BU Services will continue to hire and train field 
service technicians in response to the increasing 
demand for its services. In 2011, more than  
forty new field service technicians were hired and 
trained at the competence centers in Lausanne  
in Switzerland, Düsseldorf in Germany, and in the 
manufacturers’ training facilities. BU Services is 
committed to this training, which is increasingly 
important as customer demand for highly skilled 
support is growing. BU Services also offered 
continuous technical and commercial training to 
nearly sixty Regional Service Managers.

Online services
The launch of an internet site dedicated to services 
was a great success. It gives a structured overview 
of the possible machines improvements that  
allow to boost quality and productivity, optimize 
ergonomics, win new markets, increase availability, 
and reduce effects upon the environment. It also 
gives customers an overview of the latest promotions 
and machine upgrades, and can be found on 
bobst.com.

With all those measures realized in 2011, 
BU Services is confident that major steps forward 
have been made to better serve all Bobst Group 
customers and increase their satisfaction level. 
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BOBST ACCUBRAILLE – the solution 
for Braille embossing.

TAC – the Technical Assistance 
Coaching service package 
– focuses in particular on 
improving the productivity 
achieved with machines.

Business Unit Services
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The more unified approach of a packaging and sustainability measurement 
system will not only enable organizations to work together more effectively 
but also allow them to realize new opportunities and manage risks.

Source: The Consumer Goods Forum – A Global Language for Packaging and Sustainability
(globalpackaging.mycgforum.com).

SUSTAINABILITY 
REPORT

Bobst Group SA  Annual report 2011
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Sustainable technologies and biodegradable 
packaging take center stage
San Giorgio site, Italy

The open house event with the theme “Sustainable 
technologies and biodegradable materials”,  
held from June 15 to 17, 2011 at the technological 
center of the San Giorgio site in Italy, was an 
opportunity to demonstrate the energy efficiency 
and waste-reducing performance of the Rotomec 
product line’s rotogravure printing presses and 
laminating machines when processing compostable 
flexible packaging materials from renewable 
sources. 

Today, the desire among both consumers and 
manufacturers to favor ever more ecologically 
sound packaging is very much in evidence.  
Hence, the use of biodegradable materials 
constitutes a real challenge for the flexible 
packaging industry, particularly since at the 
moment their use remains marginal. In order  
to meet these expectations, producers of films, 
inks and resins are actively involved in developing 
new compostable materials.

While the results are already convincing, it 
must be admitted that these raw materials require 
the adoption of additional manufacturing 

measures and safety precautions. Due to their 
physical properties, derived from various vegetal 
sources, the runnability of these materials is not 
the same as that of traditional materials.

The measures adopted by the San Giorgio site  
in terms of sustainable development enabled it 
to conduct a variety of tests demonstrating the 
excellent performance and productivity of printing 
and laminating machines from the Rotomec range 
when running these new materials. 

Taking advantage of the opportunity, the site 
also presented the developments taken on  
these machines to reduce their ecological impact, 
particularly in regards to the use and recuperation 
of thermal and electric energy. These developments 
have resulted in a reduction in exhaust air volume, 
excellent solvent concentration levels, and a 
decrease in energy consumption. 

These technical solutions were presented  
on the two machines in demonstration: a BOBST 
Rotomec RS 4003 MP HS gravure press and  
a BOBST Rotomec CL 850 D duplex laminator.

New materials for the production of compostable flexible packaging, made from renewable sources, being processed  
on a BOBST Rotomec equipment.

Sustainability report
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The BOBST Rotomec RS 4003 MP HS  
gravure press
This machine printed a job, with certified inks 
produced by the Flint Group on a 20µ 
biodegradable cellulose-based NatureFlex™ NK 
transparent film manufactured by Innovia Films. 

The objective of the demonstration was  
to show that, from a sustainable development 
perspective, the reduction of waste and the 
lowering of production costs are a vital requirement 
that can be all the more respected by producing 
compostable packaging. 

Moreover, the presentation of the BOBST 
Rotomec RS 4003 MP HS was an opportunity to 
demonstrate some particularly effective 
developments introduced in its TAPS system, 
printing trolley design, inking system and high 
efficiency dryers.

The pre-register procedure for all the printing 
units lasted between 4 and 5 minutes, and for 
each demonstration less than 100 meters of waste 
was produced, despite the use of extended dryers.

The BOBST Rotomec RS 4003 MP HS press, 
whose maximum production speed is 500 m/min,  
achieved a speed of 300 m/min during the 
demonstration, which, in view of the special 
properties of the biodegradable substrate used, 
represents a very good result. 

The demonstration continued with an automatic 
splice at maximum press speed, and was  
finished by a presentation of the Smart Shaft® 
patented system. Designed to improve the  
flow of production, this system considerably speeds 
up cylinder shafting operations.

The BOBST Rotomec CL 850 D duplex laminator
The laminating of two Innovia NatureFlex™ 
compostable films was demonstrated on a BOBST 
Rotomec CL 850 D duplex laminator equipped  
with a flexo coating system trolley from the Rotomec 
range. The films – a lacquered transparent film 
and a lacquered metallized film – were laminated 
through the application of a Dow Adcote™ 
compostable solvent-based adhesive equipped 
with Flexapur™ technology. 

In as much as lamination with a biodegradable 
adhesive constitutes a new procedure, the 
San Giorgio site carried out numerous tests prior 
to the open house event. Various lamination 
technologies were used in order to find a solution 
which offered the best results for applying  
a minimum quantity of adhesive to obtain a high 
quality laminate. 

Moreover, the application of a small amount of 
adhesive permits economies in terms of both cost 
and energy consumption.

Since the drying operation also plays a 
fundamental role in the process, the CL 850 system 
was optimized upon its introduction into the 
market to provide for temperature distribution 
across the full width of the web, thereby  
reducing residual solvents and the risk of curling.

During the demonstration, the BOBST 
Rotomec CL 850 D duplex laminator achieved  
a speed of 300 m/min. This constitutes a very good 
result considering the organic properties of the 
substrates used. The demonstration ended with 
an automatic splice on the rewinder.

Results
The open house generated a great deal of interest 
among the 170 visitors, who came from some 
twenty countries. They also had the opportunity to 
attend a presentation of the BOBST Rotomec 
SL 1000 solventless laminator, which can achieve 
a production speed of up to 600 m/min and offers 
a wide range of configurations.

The open house event at the San Giorgio site 
was an opportunity to highlight a specific area  
of expertise as well as practical solutions to the 
challenges faced by both machine manufacturers 
and the converting industry, namely, to use  
ever more eco-friendly materials, technologies, 
procedures, and products, while fulfilling  
their objectives with regard to both sustainable 
development and competitiveness.

New organic properties for this lacquered metallized film, 
which is compostable.
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39Our clients are reducing their environmental 
impact thanks to developments in our products 
Bobst Group

The company inspirepac installed at its Wetherby 
site in the UK the world’s first seven-color  
BOBST MASTERFLEX-L flexo press, in order to 
respond to the requirements, in terms of  
respect for the environment, of both British 
consumers and retailers.

The BOBST MASTERFLEX-L features top quality 
printing combined with high productivity, but  
also an inking system that offers a chambered 
doctor blade and an entirely automatic wash-up, 
making it possible to reduce ink losses by 80%  
and discharged waste water by more than 60%.

Yves Durand, Technical Director of the French 
division of DS Smith Packaging, reports the 
satisfaction he draws from the BOBST MASTERCUT 
installed at the company’s Contoire-Hamel  
plant: “An analysis of three years of production 
data from our site showed us that the BOBST 
MASTERCUT produces two times more than our 
old machines.”

“The flat-bed diecutting process using the 
BOBST MASTERCUT offers a technically attractive 
solution for our markets, which require lightweight 
packaging with near-perfect diecutting quality 

and increasingly complex shapes. Thanks to the 
BOBST MASTERCUT, we can put forward a strong 
case in terms of caring for the environment by 
reducing the weight and waste produced. Because 
our group has a substantial presence in these 
markets, it is clear that in future we will have further 
contracts for this type of product.”

Martin Bruttel, Managing Director of colordruck 
Baiersbronn, explains the main reasons that led his 
company to invest in BOBST EXPERTCUT diecutters: 
“Thanks to our BOBST EXPERTCUT 106 PER 
diecutters, our products are able to fully meet the 
high quality, safety, and flexibility expectations of 
our customers. Besides their production capacity 
of 9'000 sheets per hour, these machines deliver 
maximum diecutting and embossing precision, 
bringing us very close to our goal of zero- 
fault production. Moreover, BOBST’s innovative 
technology is also highly energy efficient, helping 
us to reduce our environmental impact in  
keeping with the ambitious objectives we have set 
for ourselves.”

ISO 14001 and OHSAS 18001 certifications
Villeurbanne site, France 

The initiative undertaken in 2010 by the 
Villeurbanne site in France with a view  

The efforts of the Villeurbanne site rewarded by obtaining ISO 14001 and OHSAS 18001 certifications.

Sustainability report
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to establishing a safety and environmental 
management system came to fruition on 
May 25, 2011 with the award of ISO 14001 and 
OHSAS 18001 certifications.

Building on the already existing organization 
and procedures, the Villeurbanne site was able  
to implement the following measures:
— creation of certification references in all 

sectors of the company (assembly,  
logistics, machining, research, customers, 
administration, etc.);

— raising employee awareness concerning the 
main aspects of the two standards;

— analysis and creation of documentation aimed 
at formalizing the existing potential risks, as 
well as corresponding corrective measures, in 
the areas of environment and safety.

This certification forms part of the overall strategy 
of the Bobst Group and allows the Group, at the 
level of the French site, to make its environmental 
and safety commitments permanent. This quality 
work will make it possible to realize economies  
in the areas of energy consumption and waste 
processing.

The certification audit was conducted by the 
Euro-Quality System company, which will 
continue to monitor the Villeurbanne site in 2012 
and 2013.

 
Opening of a restaurant and day-care center
Lausanne site, Switzerland 

On September 24, 2011, the Lausanne site had the 
great pleasure of opening its new company 
restaurant and day-care center. Occupying  
a total surface of 2'400 m2, the restaurant and 

childcare facility are housed together in a single 
two-story building. The premises are the first to 
be inaugurated within the framework of the TEAM 
project (Tous Ensemble à Mex - All together at Mex). 

The restaurant can accommodate 750 persons 
and serve up to 1'500 meals per day. It includes  
a terrace, a café corner, and a table service area 
intended for business dining. By applying a  
very attractive pricing policy, the Group not only 
wanted to offer an important social benefit to  
its employees, but also encourage them to take 
their meals on the premises so that they can eat  
in a relaxed setting. 

On the ground floor of the building, the new 
day-care center extends over 300 m2 and has an 
external playground of 80 m2. Able to accommodate 
up to 44 children, the center greatly improves the 
daily lives of the parents: it spares them additional 
journeys to and from work and offers them 
unparalleled proximity to their children. 

In general, the entire building was designed 
with conviviality in mind: interior architecture 
with soundproof ceilings, external structure in 
metal and wood, planted roofing for a perfect 
integration into the landscape, and wide triple-
glazed picture windows designed to guarantee 
thermal comfort, a reduction in lighting 
requirements, and a feeling of space thanks to  
an increased penetration of daylight. A rain  
water recuperation system on the roof is another 
key feature of this building, constructed 
according to the very principles of sustainable 
development.

Opening of a new restaurant and day-care center surrounded by beautiful natural environment at the Lausanne site.
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41Donate blood – everyone wins!
Lausanne site, Switzerland

In Switzerland, approximately 3% of the population 
donates its blood voluntarily and free of charge 
each year. 

This popular trend was reflected among the 
employees on the occasion of the first blood 
donation collection event organized at the Lausanne 
site in Switzerland. 

During the course of the day, 84 donors, 
including 68 persons who were giving blood for  
the first time, enabled the collection of more  
than 38 liters of blood. The blood giving sessions 
were carried out just before the lunch break to 
give participating employees the maximum time 
possible to recuperate and thus avoid any falls  
or dizziness upon returning to the workplace.

This action was organized by two nursing 
students and three commercial apprentices.  
Four first aid providers and two occupational 
health nurses from the Lausanne site also  
took part in the blood collection sessions. The 
enthusiasm shown by all of the teams  
encourages us to repeat the experience in the 
future.

 
Apprenticeship abroad program
Bobst Group

Two automation apprentices from the Lausanne 
site in Switzerland will carry out the third year  
of their apprenticeship in Germany. The two young 
men will work at Fischer & Krecke, one of the 
companies of the Bobst Group and leader in flexo 
printing solutions for the flexible materials and 
preprinted linerboard industries.

By means of this exchange program, Bobst 
Group wishes to prepare its future workers for an 
increasingly globalized labor market. The year of 
apprenticeship abroad constitutes a first involving 
apprentices in dual training. 

The two apprentices will be able to follow their 
courses normally thanks to the implementation  
of a distance learning mechanism designed by 
teachers at the “Centre professionnel du  
Nord Vaudois”. They will also benefit from special 
supervision, as well as financial assistance  
within the framework of the mobility initiatives of 
the European Leonardo da Vinci program.

New heating system
Bielefeld site, Germany 

In 2011, the Bielefeld site in Germany totally 
revamped its heating system, which until then had 
been powered by fuel oil. Constructed at the end  
of the 1990’s with pipes more than sixty years old, 
this system caused significant heat losses. 
Moreover, the old system did not include the capacity 
to adjust the desired temperatures, which had  
a highly negative effect on working conditions.

Now that it is equipped with a new gas-
powered infrared heating system, the site aims  
to achieve the following objectives:
— reduction of energy consumption;
— improvement of employee comfort with a 

controlled ambient temperature;
— upgrade to a standard for the reduction of 

energy consumption in relation to the 
environmental charter of the Bobst Group 
(bobst.com/sustainable-development).

According to projections, the savings in energy  
will be on the order of 1'710 MWh/year (a reduction 
of 45%). 

Across Bobst Group as a whole, this initiative 
will make it possible to reduce the environmental 
impact of fossil fuels by close to 5%. With a return 
on investment of the installation in less than five 
years, the management of the German site  
is demonstrating its commitment to sustainable 
development.

Sustainability report
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Dashboards
The statistics of the Group take into account 
eleven production sites located in eight different 
countries. 

CO2 energy emissions
Net emissions decreased by more than 9%.

Indeed, due to a warmer year in Europe, energy 
consumption for heating fell on average by 21% 
– the Lausanne site in Switzerland saw a drop 
of 18% in heating oil, while the Bielefeld site in 
Germany reduced its consumption of gas by 22%. 

Waste management
The net volume of waste increased by 11%. This  
is primarily due to recycling of metals and board.

With a total volume of 5'813 tons of waste,  
of which 66% comes from metals and 14% from 
paper/board, Bobst Group achieves a very high 
recycling rate (more than 80%).

Energy
At 5'801 kWh, the energy consumption per employee 
has decreased by 4.5%. Total net consumption 
meanwhile dropped by 3.7%. When such data is 
related to the gross added value (GAV), this 
nevertheless represents a slight increase. 

Indeed, fixed sources of consumption, such  
as IT server rooms or lighting installations, do not 
decrease, even when production conditions are 
reduced.

Industrial accidents
The number of hours of absence per person due to 
professional accidents decreased by 10%.

Thanks to implementation of the OHSAS 18001 
standard, the Lyon site in France recorded a  
sharp drop (approx. 40%), thus contributing to this 
good result.

Water consumption
In 2011, water consumption diminished by 3.5%.  
A strong reduction was recorded at the Lyon site 
in France (-19%).

Two main factors influence our water 
consumption: the maintenance of green spaces 
(variable according to the weather) and the  
volume of industrial water used for production 
activities.

Objectives
In 2012, the Grenchen site in Switzerland will be 
certified according to the ISO 14001 and OHSAS 
18001 standards, and the sites at Piacenza in Italy 
and Bielefeld in Germany to the ISO 14001 
standard. 

Due to the ongoing implementation of numerous 
projects aimed at increasing the operational 
efficiency of the production sites, the certification 
of all the sites, initially foreseen for the end of 2012, 
has been postponed until 2013. 

Nine production sites out of eleven will 
nevertheless be certified to ISO 14001 in 2012. 

Within the framework of the TEAM project, all of 
the activities at the Lausanne site will be brought 
together at Mex in Switzerland during the course  
of 2012. 

In addition to the numerous actions and 
improvements undertaken in terms of sustainable 
development (rainwater recuperation system, 
vegetated roofing, triple-glazed windows, among 
others), a photovoltaic solar installation providing 
more than 400 kW has been introduced at the site. 

The aspect of sustainability will be one of the major 
themes addressed by the Bobst Group during its 
participation in the Drupa exhibition, to be held in 
Germany from the 3 to 16 May 2012. 

For any questions concerning sustainable 
development, please send a message to: 
sustainable-development@bobstgroup.com.
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DASHBOARDS

CO2 energy emissions

Electrical energy per employee

kg CO2 per m2 ground surface.

kWh per employee.

* GAV (Gross Added Value).

Waste

Injury at work

tons per mio GAV*.

lost hours per employee.

Electrical energy

Water consumption

MWh per mio GAV*.

m3 per person.
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THIS REPORT IS ESTABLISHED IN 
COMPLIANCE WITH THE DIRECTIVE 
ON INFORMATION RELATING TO 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE ISSUED BY 
THE SIX SWISS EXCHANGE.

BOBST GROUP IS COMMITTED TO 
RESPECTING PRINCIPLES OF GOOD 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE.

CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE
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451. Group structure and shareholders

1.1 Group structure (see also pages 18 and 19)
Bobst Group SA, based in Prilly, Switzerland, 
is the holding company listed at the SIX Swiss 
Exchange and owns a number of non-listed 
companies as appearing on page 120.

SIX SWISS EXCHANGE: BOBNN or 1268465 – 
ISIN: CH0012684657 – SIX TELEKURS: BOBNN,4 
or 1268465,4 – BLOOMBERG: BOBNN SW press 
equity press enter – REUTERS: BOBNN.S. Market 
capitalization of Bobst Group SA as per cover of 
this annual report.

1.2 Significant shareholders
As per latest publications according to Article 20 
of the Federal Act on Stock Exchanges and 
Securities Trading (SESTA):
—  JBF Finance SA: 

30 July 2008: 41.23%.
—  Silchester International Investors LLP: 

9 November 2010: 11.53%.
—  Bobst Group SA: 

23 July 2008: 7.25%.
—  Sarasin Investmentfonds AG: 

15 November 2011: 3.39%.

1.3 Cross-shareholdings
There are no cross-shareholdings with other 
companies.

2. Capital structure
The share capital of Bobst Group SA is structured 
in registered shares of CHF 1.–.

For more information please refer to the 
Articles of Association which are publicly available 
under investors.bobstgroup.com.

2.1 Capital
The amount of the ordinary share capital is 
CHF 17'810'002.–.

2.2 / 2.4 / 2.5 Authorized and conditional 
capital in particular / Shares and participation 
certificates / Dividend-right certificates
The ordinary share capital is divided into 17'810'002 
registered shares. There is no authorized and 
conditional capital, and there are no participation 
certificates, nor profit sharing certificates.

2.3 Changes in capital within the last three years
See notes to the consolidated financial statements: 
page 105, note 27.

2.6 Limitations on transferability and nominee 
registrations
There are no limitations on transferability for  
the shares and, therefore, no reasons for granting 
exceptions. Procedures and conditions for 
canceling statutory privileges and limitations on 
transferability do not apply.

In order to facilitate the trading of the shares 
at the stock exchange, the Board of Directors  
may, by way of a special regulation or within the 
framework of agreements with financial 
institutions or institutions admitted to the stock 
exchange, accept the registration of nominees, 
provided that the shareholder registered as nominee 
undertakes at the request of the Company, to 
reveal the identity of the beneficial owner of the 
shares registered in the name of the nominee.  
The number of shares registered in the name of 
nominees shall not exceed twenty percent of  
the shares issued by the Company. Nominees are 
registered with voting rights only if they are 
institutions regulated by an official authority  
for the supervision of banks and financial 
institutions, and only if they agree to disclose,  
at the request of the Company, the identity  
of all beneficial owners.

No nominee is registered with voting rights for 
more than five percent of the shares issued. The 
Board may grant an exception to the five percent 
limit. No such exception has been granted in  
the year under review.

2.7 Convertible bonds and warrants/options
There are no convertible bonds or warrants/
options.

Corporate governance
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3. (3.1 / 3.2) Board of 
Directors

Bruno de Kalbermatten
Honorary Chairman.

Charles Gebhard
Chairman.
1941, Swiss national.

Schools and banking 
vocational training in Basle, 
Lausanne and New York.

1997 
Management consulting. 

1990 – 2001 
Executive Vice President 
(until 1996) and Member of 
the Board of Klaus J. Jacobs 
Holding AG, Zurich and Barry 
Callebaut AG, Zurich.

1987 
Stanford University.

1975 – 1990 
Executive Vice President and 
Member of the Executive 
Committee of Jacobs 
Suchard AG, Lausanne and 
Zurich (previously Jacobs AG 
and Interfood AG).

1967 – 1974 
Finance Dept Manager of 
Ciba-Geigy, Basle (Novartis).

Other Board Membership: 
Koller Auktionen AG, Zurich.

Thierry de Kalbermatten
Vice Chairman.
1954, Swiss national.

BA, University of Lausanne 
(HEC). MBA, IMD Lausanne, 
Switzerland.

1994 – 2005 
Member of Bobst Group 
Executive Committee.

1990 – 1994 
Head of Logistics 
Department at Bobst SA.

1986 – 1990 
Marketing Manager at Bobst 
Group Inc., Roseland, USA. 

1984 – 1986
Rolex SA, Geneva, 
Switzerland. 

1980 – 1982 
UBS, Lausanne and Zurich, 
Switzerland.

Other Board Memberships:
JBF Finance SA, Vice 
Chairman and Shareholder. 
FAG Graphic Systems SA, 
Member.

Hans Rudolf Widmer
1943, Swiss national.

Dr. Jur. University of Zurich. 
MBA, University  
of Pennsylvania, USA.

Chairman of the Swiss 
Takeover Board of the Swiss 
Federal Banking Commission 
(until the end of 2007). 

Member of the Swiss 
Exchange (SIX) Panel 
of Experts on Accounting 
issues (until 2004).

1991 – 2003
CFO Rieter Holding AG, 
Winterthur, Member of the 
Group Executive Committee.

1976 – 1991
Jacobs Suchard AG, 
Zurich (various positions, 
1989 – 1991 Group CFO).

1970 – 1976
UBS, Zurich.
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Michael W.O. Garrett
1942, British and 
Australian national.

Graduate of IMD Business 
School Lausanne.

1961 – 2005 
Nestlé: Market Head 
Australia and Japan and 
Executive Vice President, 
responsible for Zone Asia-
Oceania-Africa & Middle 
East.

Other Board Memberships:
Nestlé India, Prudential 
plc UK, Hasbro Inc. USA and 
Gottex Fund Management 
Holdings Limited in 
Guernsey. Member of the 
Swaziland International 
Business Advisory Panel 
under the auspices of 
the Global Leadership 
Foundation (GLF) London.

Ulf Berg 
1950, Swiss national.

Diploma and PhD 
Mechanical Engineering, 
Technical University 
of Denmark.

Partner of BLR & Partners 
AG, Thalwil, Switzerland.

Owner of EG Energy Group 
Ltd, Zug, Switzerland.

2004 – 2009
CEO and subsequently 
Chairman of Sulzer Ltd, 
Switzerland.

2003 – 2004 
CEO of SIG Beverages Int. 
Ltd, a division of SIG AG, 
Switzerland.

1999 – 2001
CEO of Carlo Gavazzi Holding 
Ltd, Zug, Switzerland.

Other Board Memberships:
EMS Chemie Holding SA, 
Switzerland, SAG GmbH, 
Langen, Germany, MCV LLP, 
Midland, Michigan, USA, 
Kommunekemi A/S, Nyborg, 
Denmark, Member of  
the Executive Committee  
of Swissmem.

Alain Guttmann 
1958, Swiss national.

MScE, University  
of  Lausanne (HEC).

Since 2005 
Managing partner of 
CapDconsulting Guttmann.

2000 – 2004 
Founder of SFF Financial 
Services, and manager  
of a private equity fund.

1996 – 2000 
Ernst & Young Consulting: 
Executive Vice President 
Central Europe and CEO  
for Switzerland.

1986 – 1996 
Executive positions 
and partner of ICME 
management consulting 
Lausanne and Paris.

1983 – 1986 
Marketing brand manager  
for Jacobs Suchard.

Other Board Memberships:
JBF Finance SA,  
Origins holdings, LBIS SA. 

Corporate governance
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3. Board of Directors

3.1 / 3.2 Members of the Board of Directors / 
Other activities and vested interest
The members of the Board are all non executive and 
thus, none of them has operational management 
tasks for Bobst Group SA, nor for any subsidiary. 
None of the members of the Board has been  
a member of the management of Bobst Group SA, 
nor of any subsidiary for the last three years.  
Mr. Alain Guttmann was mandated to supervise 
the implementation of the Group strategy in China. 
No other member of the Board has significant 
business connections with Bobst Group SA or any 
subsidiary (see also 5.4.5).

3.3 Elections and terms of office  
(see table below)
The members of the Board are elected for a period 
of three years. Elections are individual and 
staggered in order to obtain the reappointment 
or the election of approximately one third of the 
Board each year.

Members of the Board Since Present term ends

Charles Gebhard, Chairman 2003 2013
Thierry de Kalbermatten, Vice Chairman 2005 2014
Hans Rudolf Widmer 2004 2012
Michael W.O. Garrett 2005 2012
Ulf Berg 2006 2013
Alain Guttmann 2009 2012

3.4 Internal organizational structure
The Board has a Chairman and a Vice Chairman; 
it also has a Secretary who is not a member of the 
Board.

The Board meets at least five times per year 
in order to deal with the items on the agenda 
prepared by the Chairman. In 2011, the Board met 
ten times, one one and a half day meeting, one 
full day meeting, four half-day meetings and four 
conference calls. Seven meetings were attended 
by all Board members, one meeting was attended  

by six out of seven Board members, one meeting by 
five out of six and one meeting by four out of six.

The Board members receive for each meeting 
the necessary documents in advance. The Board 
meetings are usually held at the head office  
of Bobst Group SA, but occasionally, the Board 
convenes at the site of one of the Group companies, 
or at any other interesting business related 
location. While from time to time, the Board meets 
with only its members present, as a rule all 
members of the Group Executive Committee are 
present and inform the Board about the activity  
in their respective area of responsibility.

The Committees of the Board meet in between 
Board Meetings and report to the Board.

They are: A Compensation and Nomination 
Committee, having as members Michael W.O. 
Garrett (Chairman) and Ulf Berg (member),  which 
is competent to decide certain matters subject  
to the approval of the Board.

The Compensation and Nomination Committee 
consists of between two and three non executive, 
independent directors. An independent director  
is free of any relationship that could influence his 
or her judgment as a Committee member due  
to his or her employment by the Company or a 
company of the Group during the three years  
prior to the nomination to the Compensation and 
Nomination Committee. The term of their office  
is for three years or until such date as a member 
leaves the Board.
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49The Compensation and Nomination Committee, 
for the nomination purposes, performs the 
following functions:
—  make recommendations to the Board 

concerning the size of the Board that the 
Committee believes to be appropriate;

—  review Board policies on age and term limits 
for Board members;

—  propose to the Board the criteria for the 
selection of candidates for election or   
re-election to the Board of Directors by  
the shareholders;

—  prepare a shortlist of candidates in accordance 
with the criteria adopted by the Board;

—  evaluate and propose to the Board candidates 
for Board membership as well as the   
re-election or removal of Board members;

—  recommend to the Board the appointment  
of members of the Board to become  
Chairman, Vice Chairman and members  
of a Board Committee;

—  prepare an orientation program for new Board 
members and an ongoing education program 
for existing Board members;

—  recommend to the Board the appointment  
of a person as CEO;  

and for the compensation purposes, applies  
the following policy:
—  submit to the Board for approval the main 

elements of a compensation system for  
the Board and the Group Executive Committee 
(GEC) which respects the following principles:
•   simplicity, clarity, coherence;
•   competitive remuneration to attract 

competent staff;
•   to the extent possible, the interests of the 

management are aligned with the interests 
of the Company;

•   actual remuneration paid is plausible when 
compared with individual and Group 
performance;

•    the variable part of the compensation 
depends on objective criteria and does not 
neglect criteria which are less readily 
measurable;

•   a part of the variable compensation is paid 
in the form of an allocation of shares of  
the Company. The shares are blocked for  
a number of years in order to align the  
actual compensation with longer-term goals 
of the Company;

•   avoidance of “unintended” incentives;

—   review the current compensation system 
for the members of the Board and submit 
amendments to the Board for approval;

—  review the current compensation system for 
the members of the GEC and submit 
amendments to the Board for approval;

—  review the current pension plan for the members 
of the GEC and submit amendments to the 
Board for approval;

—  recommend to the Board the individual 
compensation to be paid to the members of the 
Board, pursuant to their various functions  
and responsibilities, and submit the proposals 
to the Board for approval;

—  approve, upon proposal of the Chair of the 
Board, the total Compensation of the CEO, and 
inform the Board of such total Compensation. 
The final decision rests with the Board;

—  approve upon proposal of the CEO, the total 
Compensation of each ordinary member of the 
GEC, and submit the total compensation for all 
ordinary members of the GEC to the Board for 
approval of the total amount of compensation 
and inform the Board of the total remuneration 
paid to all members of the GEC.

The Compensation and Nomination Committee 
meets at least twice a year. In 2011, its members 
met four times for half a day. All meetings were 
attended by all Compensation and Nomination 
Committee members, with the Chairman of the 
Board and the Chief Executive Officer; the Head  
of Group HR attended three meetings. The 
Committee may obtain information from members 
of the management of the Company and may 
consult external advisors or counsel.

The Chair of the Compensation and Nomination 
Committee informs the Board on its decisions. 

An Audit Committee, having as members Hans Rudolf 
Widmer (Chairman), and Alain Guttmann 
(member), which is competent to decide certain 
matters subject to the approval of the Board, 
meets as frequently as necessary, and at least twice 
a year. In 2011, its members met four times, for 
one full day meeting and three half-day meetings.  

Corporate governance
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All meetings were attended by all Audit Committee 
members, with the Chairman of the Board, the 
Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Financial Officer, 
and the Head of Legal and Compliance, also 
attending.

The Audit Committee consists of between two 
and four directors. Half of the members at least of 
the Audit Committee should be non-executive, 
independent directors. An independent director is 
free of any relationship that could influence his  
or her judgment as a Committee member due to 
his or her employment by the Company or a 
company of the Group during the three years prior 
to the nomination to the Audit Committee.

A majority of the members of the Audit 
Committee and its Chair must have a sound 
knowledge of finance and accounting.

The primary function of the Audit Committee  
is to assist the Board in fulfilling its oversight 
responsibilities by reviewing:
—  the financial statements of the Company and 

the consolidated financial statements of the 
Group that will be provided to the shareholders;

—  the Internal Control System in the Company 
and the Group that the Group Executive 
Committee (GEC) and the Board have 
established;

—  the risk evaluation presented by the 
management.
The Committee is authorized to receive all 

pertinent information from the Group Executive 
Committee and has access to the reports 
established by the internal audit and the risk 
management.

The Audit Committee will propose to the Board 
the external auditors for Company and Group 
audits, confirm and ensure the independence of 
the external auditors, including a review of 
consulting services provided by the external 
auditors and the fees paid for them, approve  
the audit plan by the external auditors and may 
ask the auditors to enlarge their audit to include 
specific issues.

3.5 Definition of areas of responsibility
Pursuant to the Regulations adopted by the Board:

The Board delegates the management of the 
Company and the Group to the CEO who chairs the 
Group Executive Committee.

The Board retains the attributions which  
are expressly conferred to it by law or the Articles  
of Association (publicly available under  
investors.bobstgroup.com), and in particular the 
attributions which cannot be delegated pursuant  
to Article 716a of the Swiss “Code des Obligations”.

In addition, the Board retains the competence:
—  to determine the strategy and the goals of the 

Company and of the Bobst Group, and  
to determine the criteria for their financial 
management;

—  to approve the annual budget of the Company 
and the consolidated budget and to approve 
modifications of the budgets approved and 
capital expenditures not budgeted;

—  to approve the annual accounts to be brought 
before the Annual General Meeting of 
Shareholders for adoption, and to review 
financial guarantees and other off-balance 
sheet items on an annual basis;

—  to supervise the execution by the CEO of the 
management duties delegated to him;

—  to designate and revoke the members of the 
Group Executive Committee as proposed by 
the CEO;

—  to designate and revoke the persons authorized 
to engage the Company with their signature, 
with or without registering them in the “Registre 
du Commerce”;

—  to determine the compensation of the members 
of the Board pursuant to Article 28 of the 
Articles of Association;

—  to determine the compensation system for the 
members of the Group Executive Committee;

—  to verify the Internal Control System and the 
Risk Evaluation Process;

—  to supervise the application of sound corporate 
governance in the Group;

—  to bring any issue before the General Meeting 
of Shareholders;

—  to create or dissolve affiliated companies held 
directly or indirectly by the Company;

—  to acquire or dispose of shares in other 
companies held directly or indirectly;

—  to determine the rules applicable to  
the acquisition or disposal of shares of  
the Company.

The CEO has the following main attributions:
—  decisions concerning the strategy of 

the markets and product lines of the various 
Business Units of the Bobst Group, based on 
the propositions of the Heads of the Business 
Units, within the limits of the strategy of the 
Bobst Group defined by the Board of Directors;

—  decisions concerning the development of new 
products;

—  preparation of the budget;
—  decisions concerning the policy for information 

technology of the Company and the affiliated 
companies;
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51—  decisions concerning the purchasing policy  
of the affiliated companies and their means  
of production;

—  management of the relations with investors 
and financial analysts, with the authorities 
and the media;

—  decisions regarding the human resources 
policy of the companies of the Bobst Group.

As of 1 January 2012, the Group Executive 
Committee (GEC) is composed of:
—  the Chief Executive Officer (CEO);
—  the Chief Financial Officer (CFO);
—  the managers of the Business Units.

The Group Executive Committee has attributions 
detailed in the Organization Regulations  
of Bobst Group SA available under  
investors.bobstgroup.com/regulations.

3.6 Information and control instruments  
vis-à-vis the Group Executive Committee
The Board receives a monthly report which presents 
the business activity, the treasury situation  
as well as the evolution of the key items of the 
balance sheet. On a quarterly basis, a detailed 
report compares the actual figures with the 
budget and forecast. In the fall, the budget of the 
Group is presented for approval. The Group has 
internal control procedures which are regularly 
analyzed by the external auditors.

The internal audit function provides separate 
evaluations of the effectiveness and efficiency  
of the internal control systems at the level of the 
Group companies. On the basis of these 
evaluations, recommendations for improvement 
are formulated. Resources for this function are 
organized by project with multidisciplinary teams 
created in relation with the type of engagement. 
When needed, external resources are involved. 
The chief audit executive establishes an annual 
engagements plan to determine the priorities of 
the internal audit activity, as well as the companies 
to be analyzed. The plan is based on a risk 
assessment, taking also into account the input  
of the Audit Committee and of the Chief Executive 
Officer. Audit results are discussed with the 
management of the concerned companies, who 
has to define deadlines and actions for the 
implementation of the recommendations. The 
chief audit executive regularly reports to the  
Audit Committee on the performance relative to 
the initial audit plan, as well as on the significant 
risk exposures and control issues.

The Group has defined and set up a risks and 
opportunities management system, which  
is a systematic procedure for identifying and 
assessing risks and opportunities and for 
implementing appropriate risk control mechanisms. 
It is designed to enhance risk transparency  
and risk awareness, and thereby to ensure that 
opportunities can be consistently utilized and 
risks controlled. It is focused on and supports the 
achievement of the mid- and long-term objectives 
of the Group. Primary responsibility for risks  
and opportunities management is vested in the 
operating units as part of their business 
responsibility.

The Group risks and opportunities management 
system:
—  contributes to the identification of potential 

threats and opportunities to the Group’s asset, 
financial and earnings position;

—  is not limited to financial or insurable risks, 
but covers all opportunities and risks 
associated with business activities;

—  is consistently linked with the strategy 
development process;

—  promotes efficient and effective assessment 
and prioritization of risks and opportunities;

—  enhances risk response/opportunities seizing 
decisions;

—  promotes open communication on existing 
opportunities and risks.

A holistic approach classifies the Group into four 
main categories (internal: management, core and 
supporting processes; external: external influence 
factors and stakeholders), which the Group values 
with respect to its inherent risks and opportunities 
in seventy-six singular events. The most important 
risks and opportunities are identified, valued both 
qualitatively and quantitatively and then ranked 
according to priority by the managers of individual 
units in a computer-supported process. These 
managers prepare specific action plans for the major 
risks and opportunities. The results of the 
evaluation and approved measures are summarized 
in a report which is made available to the  
Group Executive Committee and Board of Directors.

In addition to this bottom up approach, a  
risk prioritization is validated yearly by the Group 
Executive Committee.

Corporate governance
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4. Group Executive Committee

4.1 / 4.2 Members of senior management /  
Other activities and vested interest
This information is available on the pages 54–55 
under the individual CV of the Group Executive 
Committee members.

4.3 Management contracts
There are no management contracts with legal 
entities or individuals outside the Bobst Group.

5. Compensation, shareholdings and loans
All amounts stated are gross and include all 
special payments.

5.1 General principles

5.1.1 Introduction
The compensation policy is essentially based on 
compensation conforming to Swiss mechanical 
industry companies active internationally. It aims 
to maintain a performance culture.

5.1.2 Comparison criteria
Periodically, every two to three years, amounts 
and components of the compensation of the 
Group Executive Committee are benchmarked 
against those of Executive Committee members 
of companies active in the same area than Bobst 
Group (as described in point 5.1.1 above).

5.2 Responsibility and procedure  
for the determination of the remuneration

5.2.1 Board of Directors
The Chairman of the Board makes proposals to 
the Compensation and Nomination Committee 
for the individual remuneration of the members of 
the Board. This proposal is usually made during 
the ordinary meeting of the Compensation and 
Nomination Committee in December.

The compensation is made pro rata for the 
period of their mandate for members joining or 
leaving during the year.

5.2.2 Group Executive Committee
The Compensation and Nomination Committee 
approves, upon proposal by the Chairman of 
the Board, the total compensation of the Chief 
Executive Officer. He informs the Board of such 
total compensation.

The Compensation and Nomination Committee 
also approves, upon proposal by the Chief 
Executive Officer, the total compensation of 
each ordinary member of the Group Executive 
Committee and submits to the Board of Directors 
for approval the global amount of compensation of 
all the ordinary members of the Group Executive 
Committee. 

These proposals are made in March during 
the ordinary meeting of the Compensation and 
Nomination Committee, and are based, for the 
variable portion, on the appraisal of objectives 
met, as set for the year under review.

5.3 Compensation system

5.3.1 Board of Directors
The members of the Board of Directors receive 
a fixed remuneration and a representation 
allowance in cash. Travel and other expenses in 
relation with their mandate are reimbursed. They 
do not have a variable compensation based on 
performance.

The compensation amount of the members of 
the Board that follows the compensation policy 
(see point 5.1.1 above) is set at the discretion of 
the Compensation and Nomination Committee.

The members of the Board are all non 
executive and thus, none of them has operational 
management tasks within Bobst Group SA, nor 
any subsidiary. None of the members of the 
Board had been a member of the management of 
Bobst Group SA, nor of any subsidiary for the last 
three years. Mr. Alain Guttmann was mandated 
to supervise the implementation of the Group 
strategy in China.

5.3.2 Group Executive Committee
The remuneration of the members of the Group 
Executive Committee is composed of the following 
components:
—  base remuneration in cash representing 50 to 

60% of budgeted total remuneration;
—  variable portion, linked to performance – 90% 

in cash (Short Term Incentive – STI), and 10% 
in shares vested for three years (Long Term 
Incentive – LTI) – representing 40 to 50% of 
the budgeted total remuneration;

—  contribution to social insurance and pension 
funds.
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53The table below presents the compensation 
system principles:

% of budgeted 
variable remuneration

Group operating result (a, b) 25
Group ROCE (a, c) 25
Business Unit operating result (a, d) 0 – 20
Group Supply, Production and Logistics efficiency (a)  0 – 20
Personal objectives (e) 30 – 50

a) Compared with the budgeted figures.
(b) As defined on page 67 of the consolidated financial statements of this annual report.
(c) ROCE (Return on Capital Employed).
(d)  Business Units as described in point 3.5 above, and on pages 18 and 19. The operating result by Business Unit  

is defined on pages 24, 28, 32, and on page 90 of the consolidated financial statements of this annual report.
(e) Represents five to ten quantitative and qualitative personal objectives fixed each year.

% of budgeted 
total remuneration

Base remuneration Cash 50 – 60

+

Variable remuneration 90% cash (STI), 10% in Bobst Group SA vested shares  
(for 3 years) (LTI) 40 – 50

The variable portion is based on the parameters indicated in the table below:

Compensation system for the members of the Group Executive Committee

The objectives are determined at the beginning of the 
year between the Chairman of the Board and the Chief 
Executive Officer, and between the Chief Executive 
Officer and the individual members of the Group 
Executive Committee. The appraisal of objectives 
met is performed when establishing the financial 
statements for the year under review. For all the above 
objectives, excluding the personal objectives, a gate at 
70% must be achieved to qualify for compensation. The 
amount of the latter is set with a cap at 150%.

The Group Executive Committee is affiliated to 
Company pension funds complemented by additional 
pension coverage for a portion of income.

All Group Executive members have a notice of 
termination of twelve months.

5.3.3 Other compensation
The members of the Board and of the Group Executive 
Committee do not receive any other component of 
compensation than those detailed above. They do not 
benefit from the following elements:

Severance pay
The members of the Board and of the Group   

Executive Committee do not contractually have 
severance pay. 

Corporate governance
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Jean-Pascal Bobst
Chief Executive Officer
since 07.05.2009. 
1965, Swiss national.

Mechanical engineer HES 
(University of Applied 
Sciences), INSEAD: Service 
for Executive and PED 
(Program for Executive 
Development).

Since 1994 with Bobst: 
various Management 
positions.

1991
Schindler Berlin, Production 
Eastern Europe.

Board Memberships: 
Member of various boards 
within the Bobst Group 
organization. 
JBF Finance SA, Member. 
Foundation Aslane, 
Chairman. Foundation 
Lumière & Vie, Member.

Attilio Tissi
Chief Financial Officer
since 08.11.2011. 
1968, Swiss and Italian 
national.

Lic. oec. HSG, University  
of St.Gallen.

Since 2008 with Bobst as 
Controller Group Supply 
Production and Logistics, 
Managing Director Bobst SA, 
and Chief Financial Officer 
ad interim from May until 
October 2011.

2002 – 2007
Associate of MCC 
Management Consulting & 
Coaching, Schaffhausen.

1998 – 2001
SIG Positec International AG, 
Neuhausen, successively 
as Head Mergers & 
Acquisitions, CFO.

1994 – 1997
Assistant to the Group 
CFO at SIG Holding AG, 
Neuhausen.

Board Memberships: 
Member of various boards 
within the Bobst Group 
organization.

Philippe Milliet
Head of Business Unit 
Sheet-fed since 08.11.2011. 
1963,  Swiss national.

Pharmacy degree. MBA, 
University of Lausanne.

Since June 2011 with Bobst.

2004 – 2010
Head of Health Division at 
Galenica Holding Ltd, Bern. 
Member of the Corporate 
Executive Committee. 

2002 – 2003
Chief Executive Officer  
of Unicible Ltd, Lausanne.

1996 – 2001
Chief Executive Officer of 
Galexis Ltd, Schönbühl. 
Member of the Executive 
Management Group of 
Galenica Holding Ltd, Bern.

1992 – 1996
Associate, Engagement 
Manager at McKinsey & 
Company, Inc., Geneva.

Board Memberships: 
Member of various boards 
within the Bobst Group 
organization. Swiss Post, 
Bern, Member.

4. (4.1 / 4.2) 
Group Executive 
Committee
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Erik Bothorel
Head of Business Unit 
Web-fed since 01.01.2010. 
1962, French national.

Master degree in mechanical 
engineering, Saint-Etienne 
National School, France.
University third cycle in 
Automation and Artificial 
Intelligence, IIRIAM, France.

Since 2004 with Bobst 
successively as Managing 
Director and Head of gravure 
product line at Rotomec SpA 
then Bobst Group Italia SpA.

2001 – 2003
Barbieri & Tarozzi, Italy, 
Group General Manager.

1998 – 2001 
SASIB, Italy, General and 
Business Unit Manager.

1987 – 1998
Jobs, France and Italy, 
successively Sales Manager, 
General Manager.

Board Memberships: 
Member of various boards 
within the Bobst Group 
organization.

Stephan März
Head of Business Unit 
Services since 01.04.2011.
1971, German national.

Mechanical engineer, 
Technical University, 
Munich (TUM). Business 
administration studies 
(TUM).

2006 – 2011
GF Agie Charmilles Group, 
Switzerland, successively 
as Head of Business 
Development, Head of 
Customer Services, Group 
Management Member.

2004 – 2005
Georg Fischer AG, 
Switzerland, Head of 
Strategic Projects.

1997 – 2004 
Roland Berger Strategy 
Consultants, Germany, 
Senior Project Manager.

Board Memberships: 
Member of various boards 
within the Bobst Group 
organization.

Have left the Group 
Executive Committee

Claude Currat
Head of Business Unit 
Services until 31.03.2011.
Head of Global Accounts 
within the Bobst Group 
organization since 
01.04.2011.

Christian Budry
Chief Financial Officer 
has left the Company on 
02.05.2011.

Hakan Pfeiffer
Head of Business Unit 
Sheet-fed has left the 
Company on 02.05.2011.

Pierre-Yves Mueller
Head of Group Supply, 
Production and Logistics 
until 08.11.2011. Will leave 
the Group on 31.01.2012.
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43.indd   55 26.03.2012   18:04:43



56

Bobst Group SA  Annual report 2011

5.4 Compensation for members of governing 
bodies

5.4.1 Total remuneration of the Board  
of Directors
In 2011, the Board of Directors decided to 
maintain the reduction of the annual fixed 
compensation of Board members by 10%. 
The total remuneration granted in 2011 to the 
members of the Board of Directors amounts  
to CHF 1.19 million.

Members of the Board Cash in CHF

Charles Gebhard, Chairman 309'000
Thierry de Kalbermatten, Vice Chairman 219'000
Ulf Berg 138'000
Christian Engel (retired from the Board AGM 04.05.2011) 69'000
Michael W.O. Garrett 138'000
Hans Rudolf Widmer 156'000
Alain Guttmann 156'000
Total remuneration 2011 1'185'000

None of the Board members are affiliated to the 
Group’s pension funds.

In addition, the Group had to pay contributions 
for Federal Old Age, Survivor and Disability 
Insurance (AVS) and Unemployment Insurance 
amounting to CHF 50'869.–.

5.4.2 Total remuneration of the members  
of the Group Executive Committee
The total remuneration of the nine members 
of the Group Executive Committee in 2011, pro 
rata for the period of their mandate (average 
equivalent of 5.4 full time), amounts to CHF 3.79 
million (details as per table below). 

Base  
remuneration Variable portion Pension plans

Payment 
in kind Total 2011

Cash CHF Cash CHF    
Shares*  
number  CHF  CHF  CHF

Total remuneration:   
Group Executive Committee 2'253'854 974'078 4'529 442'365 23'400 3'785'224
Highest compensation:    
Jean-Pascal Bobst, CEO 678'500 341'250     2'264 85'843 4'320 1'155'666

In addition, the Group had to pay contributions for 
Federal Old Age, Survivor and Disability Insurance 
(AVS) and Unemployment Insurance amounting  
to CHF 182'000.–.

*  The value of a bonus in shares, the sale of which is blocked for a period of three years, is equal to 83.96% of  
their market value at the date of attribution. The share price at the date of attribution was CHF 24.07.
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575.4.3 Compensation for former members  
of governing bodies
CHF 2.53 million was conferred to three Group 
Executive Committee members having left the 
GEC in 2011. During the year under review, there 
was no other compensation conferred to former 
members of governing bodies in relation with 
their former activity as governing bodies or not 
conforming with market practice, neither by  
Bobst Group SA or its subsidiaries.

5.4.4 Options
There are no options programs.

5.4.5 Additional fees and remunerations
Honorariums of CHF 390'667.– have been billed to 
Bobst Group SA by CapDconsulting Guttmann, 
Lussy-sur-Morges, owned by Mr. Alain Guttmann, 
member of the Board of Directors of Bobst Group SA, 
and of CHF 2'879.– by BLR & Partners, Thalwil, 
whose associate, Mr. Ulf Berg, is member of the 
Board of Directors of Bobst Group SA.

5.5 Loans granted to governing bodies
No loans or guarantees are granted to members  
of the Board of Directors or the Group Executive 
Committee or parties closely linked to them.

5.6 Share ownership
The total number of Bobst Group SA shares owned 
as at 31 December 2011 by non-executive members 
of the Board, by Group Executive Committee 
members and by persons closely linked to them 
was as per the table below:

Non-executive
Members of the Board

Number of shares
owned

Group Executive
Committee Members

Number of shares
owned

Charles Gebhard 2'000 Jean-Pascal Bobst 5'544
Thierry de Kalbermatten 210 Attilio Tissi 2'300
Hans Rudolf Widmer 900 Erik Bothorel 515 
Michael W.O. Garrett 2'000
Total 2011 5'110 Total 2011 8'359

Persons closely linked to the non-executive 
members of the Board and to the Group Executive 
Committee members are their spouses, their 
children under the age of eighteen, any legal entities 
that they own or otherwise control, or any legal  
or natural person who is acting as their fiduciary.

Corporate governance
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6. Shareholders’ participation

6.1 Voting rights restrictions and representation
Only shareholders registered with voting rights 
may represent other shareholders in the General 
Meeting of Shareholders.

There are no other voting-rights restrictions, 
nor statutory Group clauses, etc. and therefore  
no definition of reasons for granting exceptions  
is necessary.

Procedure and conditions for abolishing 
statutory voting rights restrictions: not applicable. 
Statutory rules on participation in the General 
Meeting of Shareholders do not differ from applicable 
legal provisions.

6.2 Statutory quorums
Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the 
Company, a qualified majority – two thirds  
of the shares represented at the Meeting of 
Shareholders and the absolute majority of  
the capital represented – is required for decisions 
concerning: 
—  the rule that only a registered shareholder may 

represent another shareholder;
—  the conversion of registered shares into bearer 

shares;
—  the revocation of more than one third of the 

members of the board, the modification of the 
maximum number of members of the Board 
and the term of their office.

6.3 Convocation of the General Meeting of 
Shareholders
Statutory rules on the convocation of the General 
Meeting of Shareholders do not differ from 
applicable legal provisions.

6.4 Agenda
The Articles of Association (available under 
investors.bobstgroup.com) stipulate that requests 
for including items in the agenda of the General 
Meeting of Shareholders have to be made forty 
days prior to the date of the meeting.

Shareholders who represent shares with  
a total nominal value of one million francs 
(CHF 1'000'000.–) can ask for the inclusion of  
an item in the agenda.

6.5 Inscriptions into the share register
The share register is closed for new registrations  
a few days prior to the date of the General Meeting 
of Shareholders.

7. Changes of control and defense measures

7.1 Duty to make an offer
The Articles of Association contain an opting-out 
clause: the obligation to present an offer to 
purchase all the listed securities of the Company 
(Article 32 of the Federal Act on Stock Exchanges 
and Securities of 24 March 1995), does not apply 
to the owners and purchasers of shares of the 
Company (Article 22 subparagraph 2 and Article 52 
of the Act).

7.2 Clauses on changes of control
There are no agreements and schemes benefiting 
members of the Board of Directors and/or of  
the Group Executive Committee as well as other 
members of the management with clauses  
related to change of control.

8. Auditors

8.1 Duration of the mandate and term of office  
of the lead auditor
Ernst & Young Lausanne, act as statutory auditors 
of the holding company since its incorporation  
in 2001 and as the auditors of the consolidated 
financial statements of Bobst Group since 1989. 
They also audit the Swiss affiliated companies. 
The responsibility of the engagements is assumed 
by one head auditor. He is in charge since the audit 
of the 2007 financial statements.

Pursuant to Article 730a of the Swiss  
“Code des Obligations”, a head auditor may be in 
charge of an audit for seven years at most. At 
Bobst Group SA this period lasts for seven years.

For the affiliated companies abroad, functions 
of auditors are assumed mainly by Ernst & Young.

8.2 / 8.3 Auditing fees / Additional fees
Fees in favor of Ernst & Young (worldwide) for the 
audit of the individual statements of Bobst Group SA 
and its subsidiaries on the one hand, and for  
the audit of the consolidated financial statements 
on the other hand for the year 2011 amount to 
CHF 1'169'839.–. For other professional services, 
additional fees in favor of Ernst & Young (worldwide) 
for the same period amount to CHF 369'426.–,  
of which CHF 247'456.– for tax advisory and 
compliance and CHF 121'970.– for audit related 
services.
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598.4 Informational instruments pertaining  
to the external audit
In 2011, the external auditors met three times with 
the Audit Committee. The Management Letter  
of the external auditors is the basis for discussions 
on the annual financial statements. Once a year, 
the Audit Committee reviews the performance, 
independence and remuneration (based on a 
benchmark) of the external auditors, and submits 
a proposal to the Board of Directors on which 
auditing company should be nominated for election 
at the General Meeting of Shareholders. On an 
annual basis, the Audit Committee also reviews 
the scope of external auditing, approves the  
audit plan, and discusses the corresponding audit 
results with the external auditors.

9. Information policy
Bobst Group SA publishes:

an annual report in French and English together 
with the financial statements as at 31 December 
containing also, next to an environmental and 
social report, the consolidated financial statements, 
source and utilization of funds, notes to the 
consolidated financial statements, statutory 
accounts with notes and the auditors reports,  
a half-year report in English. All these documents 
are available on the website.

Press releases, available the same day on the 
website, traditionally one at the beginning of the 
year announcing the consolidated Group turnover 
for the previous year and the outlook for the current 
year, one when publishing the annual report, one 
when publishing the half-year report, others as the 
need may occur pursuant to rules on ad hoc 
publicity.

Conferences for financial analysts and the media: 
one is held the day of the publication of the 
financial statements, another one takes place  
at the beginning of December (presentations are 
available the same day on the website).

Annual General Meeting of Shareholders.
 
Teleconferences for financial analysts and the 
media, available next day on the website: 
one when publishing the press release at the 
beginning of the year announcing the consolidated 
turnover for the previous year and the outlook  
for the current year, another one when publishing 
the half-year report and the related press release, 
others, as the need may occur.

Website links and contact
bobst.com – to reach the site home page.

investors.bobstgroup.com – to reach the 
investors pages directly and get the press 
releases and ad hoc publicity, the agenda of 
events, the annual and half-year reports,  
the teleconferences and the presentations for 
financial analysts and the media, and the 
 Articles of Association of Bobst Group SA.

investors.bobstgroup.com/order – to subscribe 
and order financial information.

investors@bobstgroup.com – to mail questions 
not addressed in the above documentation.

Corporate governance
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1890 Joseph Bobst opens a printing supplies shop in Lausanne (Switzerland).

1908 Opening of a workshop for customer service.

1915 First production of equipment.
1917 Bobst is registered as a trademark.
1918 A joint-stock company is formed under the name J. Bobst & Fils SA.

1936 First outlet abroad with the opening of a sales office in Paris (France).
1938 Up-scaling to industrial production with the inauguration of the Prilly/Lausanne site 

(Switzerland).

1940 The first Autoplaten® diecutter is unveiled.

1965 Acquisition of Champlain (1938) in Roseland/NJ (USA), today: Bobst Group North America.
Creation of Bobst Italiana, today: Bobst Group Italia.

1970 Creation of Nihon Bobst KK, today: Bobst Group Japan.
1974 Creation of Bobst Brazil, today: Bobst Group Latinoamérica do Sul.
1977 Beginning of the expansion at the Mex/Lausanne site (Switzerland).
1978 The company is renamed Bobst SA and listed on the Lausanne Stock Exchange.
1979 Creation of Bobst Canada.

1980 Operations begin at a factory in Maua (Brazil).
1985 Acquisition of Martin (1923) in Villeurbanne and Bron/Lyon (France). 

Acquisition of Peters Maschinenfabrik GmbH (1890) in Hamburg (Germany).
1987 Acquisition of a shareholding in Schiavi SpA (1927) at Piacenza and Modena (Italy).
1989 Creation of Bobst Group Benelux.

1990 Celebration of the centenary under the motto “Knowledge and People”. 
Creation of Bobst Group Deutschland.

1992 Opening of Bobst Group Africa & Middle East (Tunisia).
1993 Acquisition of Asitrade AG (1975) in Grenchen (Switzerland). 

Creation of Bobst Group Central Europe (Czech Republic).
1994 Creation of Bobst Group Malaysia and of Bobst Group Taiwan.
1995 Creation of Bobst India and of Bobst Indonesia.
1996 Creation of Bobst Group Thailand.
1997 Operations begin at a factory in Itatiba (Brazil) and in Shanghai (China). 

Creation of Bobst Group Latinoamérica Norte (Mexico).
1998 Acquisition of Corrugating Roll Corporation (CRC) (1971) in Rutledge/TN (USA).

Creation of Bobst Group Vostok in Moscow (Russia).
1999 Creation of Bobst Group Polska (Poland).

MILESTONES OF 
THE GROUP
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2000 Takeover of Fairfield Enterprises Ltd in Redditch (UK).
Strategic partnership agreement with BHS Group in Weiherhammer (Germany). 
Creation of Bobst Group Scandinavia (Denmark) and of Bobst Group (UK & Ireland). 

2001 Adoption of a new legal structure. Shareholding management is provided by Bobst Group SA.
Expansion of the factories in Shanghai (China) and in Itatiba (Brazil).

2002 Construction of a factory in Pune (India).
Creation of a representation office in Kiev (Ukraine).

2003 Expansion of the Bron/Lyon site (France).
Creation of Bobst Group Ventas y Servicios España in Barcelona (Spain), today: 
Bobst Group Ibérica, S.L.

2004 Acquisition of Atlas, General, Midi, Rotomec and Titan.
Majority shareholding in Steuer GmbH Printing Technology in Leinfelden (Germany).

2006 The Palatine Engraving Co. Ltd and Lasercomb Dies Ltd are taken over by their management.
Rotomec SpA, Schiavi SpA and Bobst Italia SpA merge under the name of Bobst Group Italia SpA.

2008  Acquisition of Fischer & Krecke GmbH in Bielefeld (Germany).
2009  Closure of FAG in Avenches (Switzerland) and Rapidex in Angers (France).

Jean-Pascal Bobst becomes CEO as of 7 May 2009. 
Launch of the Group transformation program.

2010  Implementation of an organizational structure by Business Unit and introduction of a lean 
production concept. 
Approval of TEAM project, which aims at consolidating the Bobst SA operations on one 
single site in Mex (Switzerland). Sale of the land and buildings located in Prilly (Switzerland). 
Atlas Converting Equipment Ltd in Bedford (UK), with its brands Atlas and Titan, is sold 
to its management.

2011 Acquisition of 65% of Gordon Ltd in Hong Kong (China), holding company of Shanghai 
Eternal Machinery Co. Ltd, and of the brands Eterna and Brausse.

MILESTONES OF 
THE GROUP

Milestones of the Group
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COMMENTS

2011 started with a higher level of backlog than the beginning of 2010. During the first    
half-year, the order entries were higher compared to 2010 but offset by the negative 
exchange rate impact. During the second half-year, a slight decrease in order intake was 
noticed compared to 2010, combined with a further strengthening of the Swiss Franc.

2011 was impacted by transformation costs and one-time events that influenced negatively 
the Group results.

In million CHF

Group restructuring and transformation costs -7.8
Profit on fixed assets disposals 4.0
Exceptional losses on assets -4.2
Other one-time costs -0.3
Net negative impact on Operating Result -8.3
Calculated tax impact 1.9
Net negative impact on Net Result -6.4

In 2010, the net impact of one-time events (mainly profits on the sales of fixed assets 
located in Switzerland) was positive and amounted to CHF 65.6 million at the operating 
result level and to CHF 51.1 million at the net result level.

Sales
In 2011, the Bobst Group consolidated sales amount to CHF 1.270 billion, representing a 
decrease of CHF 10 million or -0.8% compared to 2010. This evolution is due to the following 
elements:

In million CHF %

Evolution of volume 76 5.9
Change in the scope of consolidation 33 2.6
Evolution of exchange rates -119 -9.3
Total Evolution -10 -0.8

The geographical distribution shows a positive sales progression of the Asia & Oceania zone. 
The Europe and Americas zones show a decrease due to the negative exchange rate impact.

2011 2010 Variance

In million CHF In million CHF in %

Europe 600 618 -2.9
Americas 360 372 -3.2
Asia & Oceania 265 249 6.4
Africa 45 41 9.8
Total 1'270 1'280 -0.8

36.indd   65 26.03.2012   17:21:38



66

Bobst Group SA  Financial statements 2011 – Consolidated financial statements

COMMENTS

Operating Result
The operating result in the reporting year amounts to CHF 27.5 million compared to an 
operating result of CHF 61.3 million in the previous year. Without the transformation costs 
and the one-time events influence, the underlying operating result significantly improved 
from a loss of CHF 4.3 million in 2010 to an operating profit of CHF 35.8 million in 2011, which 
represents an improvement of CHF 40.1 million.

In million CHF
 Business Unit

Sheet-fed
Business Unit 

Web-fed
 Business Unit 

Services  Other

Published Operating Result -28.1 10.2 42.9 2.5
Restructuring/one-time events 4.4 2.1 2.1 -0.3
Underlying Operating Result 2011 -23.7 12.3 45.0 2.2
Underlying Operating Result 2010 -50.4 1.5 44.8 -0.2

The Business Unit Services remunerates the Business Units Sheet-fed and Web-fed for  
the right to sell spare parts and services on the new installed machines. This amount  
(CHF 23.0 million in 2011 and CHF 24.3 million in 2010) is based on the volume of machine 
sales and represents additional future sales potential for the Business Unit Services. 

Net Result
The net result reaches CHF 2.5 million. Excluding the transformation costs and the one-time 
events influence, the net result would have reached CHF 8.9 million.
The net result attributable to the shareholders (CHF 0.5 million) represents an earning per 
registered share of CHF 0.03 (2010: CHF 2.98).

Shareholders’ Equity
The consolidated shareholders’ equity amounts to 33.0% in relation to the total balance 
sheet (35.2% in 2010).

Dividend Proposal
Given the ongoing challenging market environment, the Board of Directors will not propose  
the payment of a dividend to the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders (CHF 0.– in 2010). 
This decision is not in line with the Group’s dividend policy which recommends a payout  
ratio between 30–50% of the net consolidated profit after taxes, but aims at recovering an 
equity ratio in accordance with the Group’s mid- to long-term management objectives.
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CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS

In million CHF

       Notes 2011 2010

Sales 04 1'270.3 1'280.2
 

Other operating income 05 20.0 92.4
Raw materials and services 06 -780.2 -804.6
Personnel costs 07 -429.9 -458.0
Depreciation and amortization 08 -38.9 -33.1
Other operating expenses 09 -13.8 -15.6
Operating result  27.5 61.3

 
Share of result of associates 18 1.5 2.8
Result before financial result and income tax  29.0 64.1

 
Interest expenses 10 -21.8 -24.3
Other financial expenses and income 10 6.1 22.7
Result before income tax   13.3 62.5

 
Income tax 11 -10.8 -13.2
Net result    2.5 49.3

 
Attributable:     
To shareholders  0.5 49.3
To non-controlling interest  2.0 0.0

 
Earnings per registered share (in CHF) 12 0.03 2.98
Diluted earnings per registered share (in CHF) 12 0.03 2.98
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 
OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

In million CHF

2011 2010

Net result for the period 2.5 49.3
   
Currency translation differences -7.3 -50.6
Net result on cash flow hedges -6.4 2.0
Income tax 2.5 -0.8
Other comprehensive income/loss for the period, net of tax -11.2 -49.4

  
Total comprehensive loss for the period -8.7 -0.1

Attributable:  
To shareholders -11.4 -0.1
To non-controlling interest 2.7 0.0
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET 
AS AT 31 DECEMBER

In million CHF

Notes 2011 2010

Intangible fixed assets 14 58.0 46.3
Goodwill 15 77.5 68.6
Tangible fixed assets 17 311.0 260.3
Financial assets other 4.8 2.7
Investments in associates 18 55.8 55.8
Employee benefits 30 89.3 66.2
Receivables and prepaid expenses 19 97.9 95.5
Finance lease receivables 20 12.2 17.1
Derivative financial instruments 22 0.0 0.1
Deferred tax assets 25 35.7 33.2
Non-current assets  742.2 645.8
         
Inventories 26 384.2 355.4
Receivables and prepaid expenses 19 291.0 277.4
Finance lease receivables 20 8.4 15.5
Income tax receivables  2.8 16.5
Derivative financial instruments 22 0.5 19.0
Cash and cash equivalents  288.5 313.8
Current assets  975.4 997.6
        
Total assets  1'717.6 1'643.4
   
          
Share capital 27 17.8 17.8
Reserves  547.9 510.6
Net result  0.5 49.3
Shareholders’ equity  566.2 577.7
Non-controlling interest  14.6 0.0
Equity  580.8 577.7
        
Borrowings 23 514.3 362.6
Provisions 29 3.6 3.8
Pension plans and other employee benefits 30 45.9 42.0
Trade and other payables     5.4 4.9
Deferred tax liabilities 25 88.0 94.9
Non-current liabilities  657.2 508.2
            
Borrowings 23 30.4 114.5
Provisions 29 39.6 36.5
Pension plans and other employee benefits 30 2.7 2.5
Trade and other payables     379.6 394.0
Income tax payables  16.9 8.6
Derivative financial instruments 22 10.4 1.4
Current liabilities  479.6 557.5
        
Total liabilities and equity  1'717.6 1'643.4
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

In million CHF

      2011 2010

Net result  2.5 49.3
Elimination of income from associates  -1.5 -2.8
Elimination of income taxes  10.8 13.2
Elimination of depreciation, amortization and provisions  44.5 24.1
Elimination of the result on disposal of assets  0.4 -71.2
Elimination of interest expenses/(income)  13.8 18.7
Changes in derivative financial instruments 21.1 -12.4
Changes in inventories   -24.8 4.5
Changes in receivables   -18.2 -30.4
Changes in payables   -15.5 84.5
Paid taxes    -0.5 -14.1
Cash flow from operating activities Total A 32.6 63.4

         
Disposal of subsidiaries, net of cash disposed 0.0 -3.8
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired -20.4 0.0
Purchase of intangible assets  -10.4 -9.3
Purchase of tangible assets  -81.3 -33.4
Loans and advances made  -2.4 -1.0
Proceeds from sale of tangible assets  8.4 15.5
Proceeds from sale of financial assets  0.0 0.2
Loan repayments and advances received  0.4 0.5
Interest received   5.0 5.6
Dividends received  0.0 0.1
Cash flow from investing activities Total B -100.7 -25.6

          
Proceeds from borrowings  176.5 21.6
Repayments of borrowings  -112.0 -126.2
Interest paid  -21.0 -24.3
Dividends paid to Group shareholders  0.0 0.0
Dividends paid to non-controlling interest -0.1 0.0
Cash flow from financing activities Total C 43.4 -128.9
 
Effects of exchange variances Total D -0.6 -19.7
  
Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents A+B+C+D -25.3 -110.8

   
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period  313.8 424.6
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period  288.5 313.8
Variance   -25.3 -110.8

Changes in derivative financial instruments have been reclassified separately in cash flow 
statement for year 2011 and 2010, according to best practice. This reclassification has no 
impact on the balance sheet.
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CHANGES IN CONSOLIDATED EQUITY

In million CHF

Share 
capital

Own 
shares

Hedge 
reserve

Translation 
reserve

Other 
reserves

Retained 
earnings

Total sha-
reholders’ 

equity

Non-
controlling 

interest Equity

Balance at 1 January 2010 17.8 -1.4 0.4 -18.6 0.2 579.4 577.8 0.0 577.8
Result for the period 49.3 49.3 49.3
Currency translation  
differences -50.6 -50.6 -50.6
Net result on cash flow 
hedges 2.0 2.0 2.0
Income tax -0.8 -0.8 -0.8
Total comprenhensive 
income/loss 0.0 0.0 1.2 -50.6 0.0 49.3 -0.1 0.0 -0.1
Share-based payments             0.0 0.0
Dividends           0.0 0.0
Balance at  
31 December 2010 17.8 -1.4 1.6 -69.2 0.2 628.7 577.7 0.0 577.7
       
       
Balance at 1 January 2011 17.8 -1.4 1.6 -69.2 0.2 628.7 577.7 0.0 577.7
Result for the period 0.5 0.5 2.0 2.5
Currency translation  
differences -8.0 -8.0 0.7 -7.3
Net result on cash flow 
hedges -6.4 -6.4 -6.4
Income tax 2.5 2.5 2.5
Total comprehensive  
income/loss 0.0 0.0 -3.9 -8.0 0.0 0.5 -11.4 2.7 -8.7
Share-based payments         -0.1   -0.1 -0.1
Dividends             0.0 0.0
Non-controlling interest  
arising on business  
combination 0.0 11.9 11.9
Balance at  
31 December 2011 17.8 -1.4 -2.3 -77.2 0.1 629.2 566.2 14.6 580.8
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

General information
Bobst Group SA, a company incorporated in Switzerland and having its main offices at 
50, route des Flumeaux, in Prilly/Switzerland, is the holding company of the Bobst Group, 
worldwide leading supplier of equipment and services to packaging manufacturers in  
the folding carton, corrugated board and flexible materials industries.
 
Significant accounting policies
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial 
Reporting Standards (IFRS). The financial statements have been prepared on the historical 
cost basis, except for the revaluation at fair value of certain financial instruments. The 
principal accounting policies adopted are set out below.

Standards, amendments and interpretations effective in 2011
From 1 January 2011, the Group has applied the following new and amended or revised 
standards.

IFRIC 14 (amendments), Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Requirement
The amendments apply in the limited circumstances when an entity is subject to minimum 
funding requirements and makes an early payment of contributions to cover those 
requirements. The amendments permit such an entity to treat the benefit of such an early 
payment as an asset.

The amendments have been early adopted as at 1 January 2009, with related 
retrospective application in 2008.

Improvements to IFRS (issued in 2010)
Amendments to several standards are included in the annual Improvements to IFRS issued 
in May 2010. The application of these amendments had no material impact on the Group’s 
financial statements.

IAS 24, Related Party Disclosures (revised)
The revised standard clarifies the definition of a related party in order to simplify the 
identification of related party relationships. In addition, the revised standard introduces a 
partial exemption of related party disclosure requirements for government-related entities.
The adoption of IAS 24 (revised) did not have any impact on the Group financial statements.

The following standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards are 
mandatory for the first time for the financial year beginning 1 January 2011 but are not 
relevant for the Group:
—  IAS 32 (amendments), Financial Instruments: classification of rights issues;
—  IFRIC 19, Extinguishing financial liabilities with equity instruments.

Standards, amendments and interpretations to the existing standards (mandatory  
for periods beginning on/or after 1 January 2012) that have not been early adopted by 
the Bobst Group
IFRS 7 (amendments), Disclosures – Transfers of Financial assets
The amendments require additional disclosures related to financial assets that are not 
derecognized in their entirety and to financial assets which are totally derecognized, but the 
Group has a continuing involvement in them. The amendments will be effective from 2012.

Note 1

Note 2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IFRS 7 (amendments), Disclosures – Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
The amendments contain new disclosure requirements for financial assets and liabilities 
that are offset in the statement of financial position or subject to master netting 
arrangements or similar arrangements. The amendments will be effective from 2013.

IFRS 9, Financial Instruments – Classification and Measurement
The standard addresses the classification, measurement and recognition of financial 
assets and liabilities. It replaces the part of IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and 
Measurement that relates to the classification and measurement of financial instruments. 
The new standard will be effective from 2015.

IFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements
The new standard includes a new definition of control and provides additional guidance for 
identifying control. The new standard will be effective from 2013.

IFRS 11, Joint Arrangements
The new standard replaces IAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures and provides guidance in 
defining joint control and distinguishing between joint operation and joint ventures. The new 
standard will be effective from 2013.

IFRS 12, Disclosure of Interests in Other entities
The new standard provides the disclosure requirements for all forms of interests in other 
entities. The new standard will be effective from 2013.

IFRS13, Fair Value Measurement
The standard improves consistency and reduces complexity by providing a precise definition 
of fair value and a single source of fair value measurement. The standard does not, however, 
contain rules concerning the cases when fair value is to be used. The new standard will be 
effective from 2013.

IAS 1 (amendments), Presentation of Financial Statements
The amendments require that items presented in other comprehensive income which  
could be reclassified to profit and loss at a future point in time will be presented separately 
from items that will never be reclassified. The amendments will be effective from 2013.

IAS 12 (amendments), Deferred Tax – Recovery of underlying Assets
The amendment provides a practical solution to the measurement of deferred tax on 
investment properties measured at fair value. The amendments will be effective from 2012.

IAS 19 (amendments), Employee benefits
The amended standard includes the following main changes to the previous requirements:

 — actuarial gains and losses are recognized in other comprehensive income when they 
occur. This change removes the corridor approach and eliminates the ability for entities 
to recognize all changes in the defined benefit obligation and in plan asset in profit and 
loss;

 — interest cost and expected return on plan assets are replaced by a net interest amount 
that is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability/asset;

 — past service cost, curtailment and settlement are recognized in profit and loss when 
they occur.

The amendments will be effective from 2013.
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IAS 27 (revised), Separate Financial Statements
The parts of the standard dealing with consolidated financial statements are replaced by 
IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements. The revised standard will be effective from 2013.

IAS 28 (revised), Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures
The standard has been revised due to the release of IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements. The 
content of the provision covering the accounting for shares in associates and joint ventures 
has been expended. In both cases, they provide for the uniform application of the equity 
method. The revised standard will be effective from 2013.

IAS 32 (amendments), Financial Instruments: Presentation – Offsetting Financial 
Assets and Financial Liabilities
The amendments clarify that an entity has a legally enforceable right to set-off financial 
assets and financial liabilities if that right is:

 — not contingent on a future event, and,
 — enforceable both in the normal course of business and in the event of default.

The amendments will be effective from 2014.

Bobst Group has not yet finished all the analyses about these changes. Consequently,  
all potential impacts cannot be described yet.

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company 
(Bobst Group SA) and entities controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is 
achieved where the Company has the power to govern the financial and operating policies  
of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the 
consolidated income statement from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective 
date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries  
to bring their accounting policies in line with those used by the Group.

All intra-Group transactions, balances, income and expenses (including dividends) are 
eliminated during the consolidation.

Non-controlling interests are identified separately from the equity of the owners of the parent. 
Losses applicable to the non-controlling interests in a subsidiary are allocated to the non-
controlling interests even if that results in a deficit balance.

Scope of consolidation
The changes in the scope of consolidation with respect to the prior year are shown  
in note 34. The consolidated companies are listed on page 120. The closing date of the 
companies is 31 December.

Business combinations
Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an 
acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred, measured at 
acquisition date fair value and the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree. 
For each business combination, the Group measures the non-controlling interest in the 
acquiree either at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net 
assets. The choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis.

 Acquisition-related costs are recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities 
assumed for appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the contractual 
terms, economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date.
If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date fair value of the 
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at  
the acquisition date through profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Group will be recognized at 
fair value at the acquisition date and included as part of the consideration transferred in 
a business combination. If the contingent consideration is classified as equity, it is not 
remeasured and settlement is accounted for within equity. Otherwise, subsequent changes 
to the fair value of the contingent consideration are recognized in profit or loss. 

Investments in associates
An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence and that is neither 
a subsidiary nor an interest in a joint venture. Significant influence is the power to 
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control 
or joint control over those policies. The results and assets and liabilities of associates  
are incorporated in these financial statements using the equity method of accounting. Under 
the equity method, investments in associates are carried in the consolidated balance sheet  
at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the net assets of the 
associate, less any impairment in the value of individual investments. If an associate is    
over-indebted and the Group's interest is reduced to zero, additional losses are provided for, 
only to the extent that the Group has a legal or constructive obligation. 

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the 
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the associate, recognized at the date 
of acquisition, is recognized as goodwill. The goodwill is included in the carrying amount 
of the investment and is assessed for impairment as part of the investment. Any excess of 
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent 
liabilities over the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognized immediately in profit 
or loss. Where a Group entity transacts with an associate of the Group, profits and losses  
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the relevant associate.

Assets classified as held for sale
Assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be 
recovered through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition  
is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and the asset (or disposal group)  
is available for immediate sale in its present condition. Management must be committed  
to the sale, which should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within 
one year from the date of classification. Assets (and disposal groups) classified as held  
for sale are measured at the lower of the assets’ previous carrying amount and fair value, 
less disposal costs.

Impairment of assets
Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortization and are tested 
annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to amortization or depreciation are 
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the 
carrying amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the asset’s carrying value 
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair 
value less costs to sell and value in use.

For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for 
which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36.indd   75 26.03.2012   17:21:39



76

Bobst Group SA  Financial statements 2011 – Consolidated financial statements

Segment reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting 
provided to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is 
responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segment, 
has been identified as the Group Executive Committee.

Revenue recognition
Revenue from the sales of goods and services is measured at the fair value of the consideration 
received or receivable, net of returns, trade discounts, rebates and other sales taxes or duty. 
The Group recognizes revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is 
probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Group and when specific criteria have 
been met for each of the Group’s activities as described below. 

Sales of goods – machines. Revenue from the sales of machines is recognized when the 
significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer, recovery of 
the consideration is probable, the associated costs can be estimated reliably, there is no 
continuing management involvement with the machines, and the amount of revenue can be 
measured reliably. 

Sales of goods – spare parts. Spare parts revenue is mainly recognized upon shipment. 

Sales of services. Revenues from services rendered include various services, such as 
maintenance contracts, reactive services and upgrades. Sales of services are recognized  
as revenue in the accounting period in which the services are rendered, which means that 
they are allocated over the contractual period.

If a machine sale includes subsequent delivery of parts and/or service, the corresponding 
amount is deferred and recognized as revenue when the recognition criteria are met for the 
corresponding category.

The Group’s policy for recognition of revenue from operating leases is described in the 
section “The Group as lessor” below.

Interest income. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal 
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly 
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to 
that asset’s net carrying amount. 

Dividend income. Dividend income from investments outside of the Group is recognized 
when the shareholder’s right to receive payment has been established.

Leasing
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially 
all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as 
operating leases.

The Group as lessor. Bobst Group companies may act as direct lessor to the customers. In 
accordance with IAS 17, leases where the Group transfers substantially all risks and benefits 
of ownership of the leased machine are disclosed as finance lease receivables. Amounts  
due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as finance lease receivables at the amount 
of the Group’s net present value for expected lease payments. Finance lease income is 
allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Group’s 
net investment outstanding in respect of the leases. 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 
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Leases where the Group does not transfer substantially all risks and benefits of ownership 
of the asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income from operating leases is 
recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs 
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount  
of the leased asset and recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 

The Group as lessee. The Group does not act as lessee for its capital expenditures, except 
for minor items.

Foreign currencies
The individual financial statements of each Group entity are presented in the currency of the 
primary economic environment in which the entity operates (its functional currency). For  
the purpose of the consolidated financial statements, the results and financial position of 
each entity are expressed in Swiss Francs, which is the functional currency of Bobst Group 
SA and the presentation currency for the consolidated financial statements. 

In preparing the financial statements of the individual entities, transactions in currencies 
other than the entity’s functional currency (foreign currencies) are recorded at the rates  
of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At each balance sheet date, all items 
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rates prevailing on the balance 
sheet date.

Exchange differences arising from the settlement of monetary items, and from the 
retranslation of monetary items, are included in profit or loss for the period.

In order to hedge its exposure to certain foreign exchange risks, the Group enters into forward 
contracts and options (see below for details of the Group’s accounting policies in respect  
of such derivative financial instruments). For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial 
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign currency operations (including 
comparatives) are translated into Swiss Francs using exchange rates prevailing on the balance 
sheet date. Income, expense and cash flow items (including comparatives) are translated at 
the average exchange rates for the period.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising from the acquisition of a foreign operation 
are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset 
that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or  
sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the respective assets. All other borrowing costs are 
expensed in the period they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that 
the Group incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

The Group capitalizes borrowing costs for all eligible assets where construction started 
on or after 1 January 2009.

Pension plans and other employee benefits

Defined contribution post-employment benefits. The contributions to such plans are recorded 
as expenses in the period in which they are incurred.

Defined benefit post-employment benefits. The liabilities of the Group arising from 
defined benefit obligations are determined using the projected unit credit method. Valuations 
are carried out on a regular basis by independent actuaries. Actuarial gains and losses  
arise mainly from changes in long-term assumptions (e.g. discount rate, salary increase) and 
from differences between actuarial assumptions and what has actually occurred.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 
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They are recognized in the income statement over the expected average remaining working 
lives of the employees only to the extent that their net cumulative amount exceeds 10%  
of the greater of either the present value of the obligation or the fair value of plan assets at 
the end of the previous year.

The actuarial cost charged to the income statement consists mainly of:
 — service cost, which corresponds to the acquisition of one additional year of rights;
 — interest cost, which is due to the increase in the net present value of the benefit 

obligation which arises because the benefits are one period closer to their payment 
dates;

 — expected return on plan assets;
 — past service cost and actuarial gains and losses to the extent that they are recognized.

Other long-term employee benefits. The actuarial value of the related obligations is 
accrued in liabilities, and the actuarial gains and losses are directly posted to the income.

Share-based payment compensation
The cost of equity-settled compensation is measured by reference to the market value 
of the shares at the date on which they are granted. This cost is included in the personnel 
expenses.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable, as well as deferred 
taxes.

Tax payables. The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit 
differs from profit as reported in the income statement because it excludes items of income 
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years, and it further excludes items  
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using 
tax rates prevailing on the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax. Deferred tax is recognized on differences between the carrying amounts 
of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in 
the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for  
all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that 
it is probable that taxable profits will be available, against which deductible temporary 
differences can be utilized. Such assets and liabilities are not recognized if the temporary 
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business 
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable 
profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary differences arising from 
investments in subsidiaries and associates, as well as from interests in joint ventures, 
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference, and where 
it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed on each balance sheet date and 
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be 
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered. Deferred tax is calculated at the tax 
rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset 
realized, based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting 
date. Deferred tax is charged or credited to profit or loss, except when it relates to items 
charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set 
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities, and when they relate to income taxes 
levied by the same tax authority, within the same taxable entity, and when the Group intends 
to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Intangible fixed assets

Brands and Patents. Brands and patents are measured initially at purchase cost and are 
amortized on a straight-line basis over the shorter of their contractual or useful economic 
lives (10–20 years).

Computer Software. Acquired computer software licenses are capitalized on the basis of 
the costs incurred to acquire and put into service the specific software. These costs are 
amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful life (3–7 years).

Goodwill. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of a subsidiary or a jointly controlled entity 
represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s interest in the net fair value 
of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the subsidiary or jointly 
controlled entity recognized at the date of acquisition. Goodwill is initially measured at cost, 
being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the amount 
recognized for non-controlling interest over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities 
assumed. If this consideration is lower than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary 
acquired, the difference is recognized in profit or loss. After initial recognition, goodwill is 
measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of impairment 
testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units expected to benefit 
from the synergies of the combination.

Cash-generating units to which goodwill has been allocated are tested for impairment 
annually, or more frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If  
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount of the  
unit, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill 
allocated to the unit, and then to the other assets of the unit, pro rata on the basis of the 
carrying amount of each asset in the unit. An impairment loss recognized for goodwill is  
not reversed in a subsequent period.

On disposal of a subsidiary or a jointly controlled entity, the attributable amount of 
goodwill is included in the determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

Research & Development
All research costs are charged directly to the income statement. Development costs are 
also charged to the income statement in the period in which they occur due to uncertainties 
inherent in the development of new products. Experience shows that a future economic 
benefit can only be proven once the products have been successfully launched in the market.

Tangible fixed assets
Land is booked at purchase cost, and the other tangible fixed assets at purchase or 
manufacturing costs less depreciation. Gains and losses on disposals are determined by 
comparing proceeds with the carrying amount. These are included in the income statement. 
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Land is not depreciated. Depreciation on other tangible fixed assets is calculated using the 
straight-line method as follows:

Buildings (including investment properties) 10–30 years
Techn. instal., industrial equipment 7–20 years
Machines leased to customers According to their useful life
IT equipment 4 years
Other 5–7 years
In progress Not depreciated

Inventories
Raw materials are stated at the lower of either the cost or the net realizable value, using the 
weighted average method. Work in progress and finished products are stated at the lower  
of the production costs or the net realizable value. Production costs comprise direct materials 
and, where applicable, direct labor costs and those overheads that have been incurred in 
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Net realizable value represents 
the estimated selling price less all estimated costs of completion and costs to be incurred  
in marketing, selling and distribution. Valuation adjustments are made for slow-moving items 
and excess stock.

Financial instruments – Financial assets
Financial assets are recognized on the Group’s balance sheet when the Group becomes  
a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. 

Initial recognition and measurement. At initial recognition, financial assets are designated 
into two categories, Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss and Loans and 
receivables.

Financial assets are initially recognized at fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset 
not at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial assets include cash and cash equivalents, receivables, financial 
assets other and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement. The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on 
their classification:

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss. This category comprises financial 
assets held for trading, which comprise assets acquired principally for the purpose of being 
sold in a near future and derivatives entered into by the Group that are not designated as 
effective hedging instruments.

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss are carried in the balance sheet at 
fair value with changes in fair value recognized in the income statement.

Loans and receivables. Loans and receivables are non derivative financial assets with 
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. Loans and 
receivables are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate 
method, less impairment. 

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that 
an asset or group of assets is impaired. An asset or group of assets is deemed to be impaired 
if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events  
that has occurred after initial recognition of the asset (“loss event”) and that loss event has 
an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the asset or the group of assets that can  
be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or  
a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulties, default or delinquency  
in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will encounter bankruptcy and 
where observable data indicate that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated  
future cash flows.
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The amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount 
and the present value of estimated future cash flows.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease 
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized  
(such as an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the previously recognized 
impairment loss is included in the consolidated profit and loss statement.

Derecognition. A financial asset is derecognized when: 
 — the contractual rights to receive cash flows expire, or
 — the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either the 

Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or the Group 
has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, 
but has transferred control of the asset.

Financial instruments – Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Group are classified according  
to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of  
a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the net assets  
of the Group.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement. Financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair 
value plus directly attributable transaction costs. 

At initial recognition, financial liabilities are designated into the categories Financial 
liabilities at fair value through profit and loss and Other financial liabilities.

The Group’s financial liabilities include Trade and other payables, Borrowings and 
Derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement. The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends 
on their classification:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss. This category comprises 
derivatives entered into by the Group that are not designated as effective hedging 
instruments.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss are carried in the balance sheet 
at fair value with changes in fair value recognized in the income statement.

Other financial liabilities. Interest-bearing loans and overdrafts are subsequently 
measured at amortized cost, using the effective interest rate method. Any difference 
between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the settlement or redemption of 
borrowings is recognized over the term of the borrowings.

Derecognition. A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability 
is discharged, cancelled or expires.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and other  
short-term highly liquid investments that are easily and quickly convertible to a known 
amount of cash.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36.indd   81 26.03.2012   17:21:39



82

Bobst Group SA  Financial statements 2011 – Consolidated financial statements

Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities
The Group enters into derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to interest 
rate and foreign exchange rate risk. The Group’s management principles impose cautious 
financial management of the service of its industrial activity. Therefore, the Group does not 
use derivative financial instruments for speculative purposes.

Accounting for derivative financial instruments and hedging activities. Derivative 
financial instruments are initially measured at fair value on the contract date, and are 
remeasured at fair value at subsequent reporting dates.

The Group documents at the inception of the transaction the relationship between 
hedging instruments and hedged items. The method of recognizing the resulting gain or loss 
depends on the nature of the item being hedged. Certain derivatives are designated “fair 
value hedges” and serve to hedge the fair value of recognized assets or liabilities, or a firm 
commitment. Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as  
fair value hedges are recorded in the income statement, together with any changes in the 
fair value of the hedged asset or liability that are attributable to the hedged risk. Other 
derivatives are designated “cash flow hedges” and serve to hedge highly probable forecast 
transactions (for instance budgeted sales).

The Group documents its assessment, both at hedge inception and on an ongoing basis, 
of whether the derivatives that are used are highly effective in offsetting changes of the 
hedged items. The effective portion of changes of derivatives that are designated and qualify 
as “cash flow hedges” are recognized in other comprehensive income (hedge accounting). 
The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognized immediately in the income 
statement (currently hedge accounting is only in use at the subsidiary Bobst Group North 
America).

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or is sold, 
terminated, or exercised, or no longer qualifies for hedge accounting. Any cumulative gain or 
loss existing in equity at that time remains in equity and is recognized when the forecast 
transaction is ultimately recognized to the income statement. If a hedged transaction is no 
longer expected to occur, the net cumulative gain or loss is transferred to profit or loss of  
the period.

Changes in the fair value of any derivative instruments that do not qualify for hedge 
accounting (“hedges”) are recognized immediately in the income statement. The Group has 
no hedges of net investments in foreign operations.

The fair values of various derivative financial instruments used are disclosed in note 24. 
Movements on the hedging reserve in the statement of comprehensive income are shown  
on page 68.

Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation as a result of a past 
event, and when it is probable that the Group will be required to settle that obligation. 
Provisions are evaluated based upon the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle 
the obligation at the balance sheet date, and are discounted to present value where  
the effect is material. Provisions are classified as warranties/product liabilities, litigations, 
restructuring and other. 

Warranties/Product liabilities include provisions for technical risks, customer claims and 
penalties in the context of product deliveries and services. The provision is based on 
expected claims for product liabilities on sales that have already taken place, on historical 
warranty data and a weighting of all possible outcomes against their associated probabilities. 
Warranty expenses are expected before expiration of the granted warranty period.
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Note 3

Litigations include provisions for current and probable legal proceedings related to events  
in the past. A number of subsidiaries are subject to various legal proceedings that arise from 
time to time, including product liability, commercial, employment and tax litigations, or 
intellectual property disputes. The expected timing of future cash outflows is uncertain as it 
will depend upon the outcome of the legal proceedings.

For restructuring provisions, constructive obligation to restructure arises only when  
a detailed formal plan exists which identifies at least the business or part of the business 
concerned, the principal sites affected, the location, function and approximate number  
of employees who will be compensated for terminating their services, the expenditures that 
will be undertaken and the timing of the implementation; and when the features of this  
plan have been communicated in a manner that raised a valid expectation in those affected 
by it that the restructuring plan will be carried out.

Significant accounting judgements, estimates, financial risk and capital management

Significant accounting judgements
In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the 
following judgement, apart from other estimations, which could have a significant effect  
on the amounts recognized in the financial statements.

Benefit of tax loss carry-forwards. Some entities of the Group have made losses generating 
available tax loss carry-forwards and tax credits for the future. When the Group is not  
able to determine with enough certainty the future profits of certain entities, unutilized tax 
carry-forwards are not capitalized (note 25). 

Estimates
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty 
at the balance sheet date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment  
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed 
below.

Impairment of Goodwill. The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least once 
a year. This requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units to which 
the goodwill is allocated. For the estimation of the value in use, the Group has to make an 
estimate of the expected future cash flows from the cash-generating unit and choose a suitable 
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.

Significant assumptions and valuations are necessary to make these estimates. The 
factors such as volume, selling price, material and personnel costs, capital expenditures, 
outcome of R&D activities as well as market conditions and other economic factors are 
based on assumptions that management regards as reasonable. Due to these factors, actual 
cash flows and values could vary from the forecasted future cash flows and related values 
derived using discounting techniques.

Provisions. Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation as a result 
of a past event, and when it is probable that the Group will be required to settle that 
obligation. Provisions are created for a variety of possible events (for details, see note 2). 
However, by definition, provisions contain a higher degree of estimates than other  
balance sheet items, since the estimated obligations can cause greater or lesser cash drain 
depending on how the situation materializes.
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Employee benefits. In various countries there are pension and other retirement plans. Several 
statistical and other factors that attempt to anticipate future events are used in calculating 
the expense and liability related to the plans. These factors include assumptions about  
the discount rate, the expected return on plan assets and the expected rate of salary increase. 
The actuarial assumptions used (note 30) may differ from actual results due to changing 
market and economic conditions.

Financial risk management
The Bobst Group way of managing financial matters aims to a strong decentralization, 
whether for cash management, short and long-term borrowing and foreign exchange risks. 
Decentralization avoids the inefficiency of miscommunication and enables a more rapid 
local reaction, with the result of more cost-efficient transactions. Moreover, it enables the 
use of natural hedge at the level of the Group companies. There is a strict regular reporting 
on such matters to the Group treasury. Finally, given the tight management of the balance 
sheet structures of the individual Group companies, Group treasury is systematically 
involved to bring the global expertise when negotiating credit lines and other borrowings, 
with the aim of ensuring conditions in line with the rating of the Group.

Foreign exchange risks. Transaction risks: As per Group policy, companies are instructed 
to hedge significant transaction risks with the appropriate derivatives when they arise,  
with the aim of guaranteeing margins achieved when selling products. Translation risks:  
are not hedged and the relative amounts end up in equity under translation reserve. The 
Group utilizes natural hedge in order to offset some of these risks.

Interest rate risks. The Group uses interest rate derivatives to manage its exposure to 
interest rate movements on its bank borrowings. The contracts are concluded by the Group 
companies being in such a situation evidencing need for such transactions. Group treasury 
is involved in the decision process.

Credit risks. Credit risks are linked with the non ability or unwillingness of such counterparties 
to a transaction to fulfill its obligations.

Customers: determination of the payment conditions resulting in the trade receivables 
takes into consideration the country risk as well as solvency of the counterparty. Reserve  
of property clauses are also utilized until final payment.

In relation with longer-term payment conditions agreed upon and depending on the 
negotiations with the customer, guarantees including, among others, export credit agencies 
and private insurers are used.

When risk conditions allow it, it is also regular practice to discount without recourse 
amounts due by customers.

There is no particular risk concentration on the customer receivables. Local and Group 
finance members monitor the payment conditions.

Banks and counterparties: for other financial assets, the concern of credit risk imposes 
the use of good quality counterparties.

Cash is deposited with a number of various well established banks to prevent any 
concentration risk.

Liquidity risks. Sufficient reserve of cash is maintained to meet at all times the Group’s 
liquidity requirements.

Cash is managed in a decentralized way but under strict reporting and forecasting to  
the attention of Group treasury, to enable quick reaction whenever necessary.
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Capital management
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to 
continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits  
for other stakeholders as well as to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce cost  
of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adapt the amount 
of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell 
assets.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the equity ratio. This ratio is calculated 
as equity divided by the total of the balance sheet. Equity is defined as shown in the 
consolidated balance sheet. The Group’s policy is to keep the equity ratio as per Group’s 
mid- to long-term management objectives (see page 16).
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In million CHF

Note 4
Sales

Business segment information is stated on note 13.

        2011 2010

Distribution by business activity:     
Machines 925.0 916.6
Spare parts 282.7 294.9
Services 62.6 68.7
Total 1'270.3 1'280.2

Note 5
Other operating income

2011 2010

Gains on disposal of fixed assets 4.0 77.4
Capitalized production 1.0 1.8
Transfer of operating charges 5.0 4.1
Income from leased machines 0.1 0.2
Other 9.9 8.9
Total 20.0 92.4

The gains on disposal of fixed assets for 2010 relates mainly to the sales of real estate 
properties located in Switzerland.

Note 6
Raw materials and services

2011 2010

Material costs 556.1 571.3
Rent, Maintenance, Energy 33.4 33.5
Marketing, Communication, Travel 50.5 53.1
External staff 20.7 16.9
Transport, Customs, Insurance 34.7 37.1
Administration and other costs 84.8 92.7
Total 780.2 804.6

Note 7
Personnel costs

   2011 2010

Wages and salaries 356.2 372.1
Social expenses and other personnel expenses 73.7 85.9
Total 429.9 458.0

Since 2009 an important Group transformation program generated significant 
restructuring costs, of which 7.8 million relate to personnel costs in 2011  
(2010: CHF 1.4 million).
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In million CHF

Note 8
Depreciation and amortization

    2011 2010

Intangible assets 16.2 9.6
Tangible assets 22.7 23.5
Total 38.9 33.1

Note 9
Other operating expenses

       2011 2010

Taxes on capital and other taxes 9.4 9.3
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries (note 33) 0.0 3.8
Non recurrent charges 4.4 2.5
Total 13.8 15.6

The non recurrent charges relate exclusively to the write-off of fixed assets which were no 
longer used. For 2011, this amount is mainly due to the TEAM project with the replacement 
of several tangible assets.

Note 10
Financial result

        2011 2010

Interest expenses -21.8 -24.3
Interest income 7.9 5.6
Exchange rate differences 21.0 3.9
Gains/losses on derivative financial instruments -20.8 12.4
Gains/losses on disposal of financial assets 0.0 0.1
Other financial income 2.5 3.5
Other financial expenses -4.5 -2.8
Total other financial expenses and income 6.1 22.7
Total -15.7 -1.6
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In million CHF

Note 11
Income tax

    2011 2010

Current taxes expense 20.2 10.4
Deferred taxes (income)/expense -9.4 2.8
Total 10.8 13.2

  
The total above expense for each year can be reconciled as follows:  
Result before income tax (including result of associates) 13.3 62.5
Result of associates -1.5 -2.8
Result before income tax (excluding result of associates) 11.8 59.7

       
Taxes at the weighted average income tax rate of 96.3% (2010: 32.3%).
These percentages are based on rates prevailing in the different jurisdictions 11.4 19.3
Tax effect of utilization of tax losses not previously recognized -1.9 -6.6
Tax losses for which no deferred income tax asset was recognized during the year 0.5 1.0
Tax effect of non-deductible items 0.8 0.0
Changes in tax rates 0.4 0.0
Other effects -0.4 -0.5
Total 10.8 13.2

The weighted average applicable tax rate is increasing from 32.3% in 2010 to 96.3% in 
2011. This increase is caused by a change in the profitability mix of the Group’s subsidiaries 
in the different countries. For 2011, losses are realized by companies having lower tax 
rates thus negatively impacting the weighted average tax rate.

Note 12
Earnings per share

2011 2010

Net result attributable to shareholders (in million CHF) 0.5 49.3
Average number of registered shares 16'518'478 16'518'478
Earnings per registered share (in CHF) 0.03 2.98
Diluted earnings per registered share (in CHF) 0.03 2.98

The average number of outstanding registered shares is calculated based on the number 
of shares issued, less the weighted average of own shares. Since there were no conversion 
rights and no option rights outstanding, earnings per registered share have not been 
diluted.
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In million CHF

Note 13
Segment reporting

The Group Executive Committee is identified as chief operating decision-maker and reviews 
the Group’s internal reporting in order to assess performance and allocate resources. 

Internal reporting is based on the same accounting principles as the ones used  
to establish these financial statements and segment performance is assessed based on  
the operating result. 

However, Group financing (including finance costs and finance income) and income 
taxes are managed on a Group basis and are not allocated to operating segments.

The reportable segments of the Group are as follows:
 — BU Sheet-fed combines machine sales of all product lines in the folding carton and 

corrugated board industries;
 — BU Web-fed covers machine sales activities linked to the flexible materials industry, 

including the Web-fed Solutions product line;
 — BU Services expands Bobst Group’s service offering by developing the sale of supplies 

and by supporting the customers in their operational activities;
 — the segment “Other” includes secondary activities which are not significant for the 

Group.

No operating segments have been aggregated to form the above reportable operating 
segments. 

The inter-segment operations correspond to the contribution paid by the Business Unit 
Services to the other Business Units for the right to sell spare parts and services on their 
equipment. These contributions do not generate internal margin.

2011 2010

Revenue
Sheet-fed third party sales 608.4 607.5
Sheet-fed inter-segment 16.8 18.2
Sheet-fed total revenue 625.2 625.7

Web-fed third party sales 310.4 304.1
Web-fed inter-segment 6.2 6.1
Web-fed total revenue 316.6 310.2

Services third party sales 345.3 363.7

Other third party sales 6.2 4.9

Eliminations inter-segment -23.0 -24.3

Total third party sales 1'270.3 1'280.2
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In million CHF

Note 13 (continued)
Segment reporting 

Sheet-fed Web-fed Services Other Total

2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010

Results
Total segment operating result -28.1 -0.1 10.2 6.1 42.9 52.6 2.5 2.7 27.5 61.3
Share of result of associates (note 18) 1.5 2.8 1.5 2.8
Financial result -15.7 -1.6
Result before income tax 13.3 62.5
Segment operating result includes:
Depreciation and amortization -26.1 -20.6 -5.7 -5.1 -6.9 -7.3 -0.2 -0.1 -38.9 -33.1
Restructuring costs  
(personnel and other) (note 7) -4.6 -2.5 -1.8 -3.1 -1.4 -4.3 0.0 0.0 -7.8 -9.9
Gains on disposal of fixed assets  
(note 5) 2.7 54.6 0.0 8.1 0.1 11.7 1.2 3.0 4.0 77.4

Sheet-fed Web-fed Services Other Total

  2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010

Other disclosures
Capital expenditure 57.5 39.7 14.1 8.1 15.9 8.9 0.1 0.1 87.6 56.8

Capital expenditure consists of tangible and intangible fixed assets.

Geographic information

      2011 2010

Revenue from external sales
Switzerland (domicile country) 23.7 1.9% 24.7 1.9%
United States of America 225.1 17.7% 227.8 17.8%
Germany 122.3 9.6% 125.7 9.8%
Other countries 899.2 70.8% 902.0 70.5%
Total 1'270.3 100.0% 1'280.2 100.0%
      
Non-current assets
Switzerland (domicile country) 241.4 54.1% 196 52.2%
Germany 45.8 10.3% 46.4 12.4%
Italy 45.7 10.2% 46.6 12.4%
Great China Region 45.6 10.2% 9.8 2.6%
Other countries 68.0 15.2% 76.4 20.4%
Total 446.5 100.0% 375.2 100.0%

Revenues are allocated to countries on the basis of the client’s location. Non-current 
assets consist of tangible and intangible fixed assets as well as goodwill.
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In million CHF

Note 14
Intangible fixed assets

Brands and  
Patents Software Other In progress Total

Gross value
At the beginning of the year 2011 20.7 89.2 8.5 6.1 124.5
Additions 0.0 7.9 0.0 2.5 10.4
Disposals and decreases 0.0 -3.9 0.0 0.0 -3.9
Change in the scope of consolidation 14.1 0.1 3.0 0.0 17.2
Currency variances 0.6 -0.3 0.1 0.0 0.4
Transfers 0.0 2.8 0.0 -2.8 0.0
At year-end 2011 35.4 95.8 11.6 5.8 148.6
       
       
Accumulated amortization
At the beginning of the year 2011 -17.4 -59.9 -0.9 0.0 -78.2
Additions -2.5 -10.3 -3.4 0.0 -16.2
Disposals and decreases 0.0 3.7 0.0 0.0 3.7
Change in the scope of consolidation 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Currency variances -0.2 0.3 0.0 0.0 0.1
Transfers 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
At year-end 2011 -20.1 -66.2 -4.3 0.0 -90.6
Net value at year-end 2011 15.3 29.6 7.3 5.8 58.0

There is no impairment charge or reversal included in the 2011 amortization charge.
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In million CHF

Note 14 (continued)
Intangible fixed assets

Brands and 
Patents Software Other In progress Total

Gross value
At the beginning of the year 2010 21.7 100.8 1.7 0.0 124.2
Additions 0.0 3.2 6.9 6.1 16.2
Disposals and decreases 0.0 -12.7 0.0 0.0 -12.7
Currency variances -1.0 -2.1 -0.1 0.0 -3.2
At year-end 2010 20.7 89.2 8.5 6.1 124.5
       
       
Accumulated amortization
At the beginning of the year 2010 -17.3 -64.2 -0.8 0.0 -82.3
Additions -0.5 -8.9 -0.2 0.0 -9.6
Disposals and decreases 0.0 11.5 0.0 0.0 11.5
Currency variances 0.4 1.7 0.1 0.0 2.2
At year-end 2010 -17.4 -59.9 -0.9 0.0 -78.2
Net value at year-end 2010 3.3 29.3 7.6 6.1 46.3

In 2010, the Group sold its properties in Prilly (CH) but kept the right to occupy the buildings 
until the move to the new premises. This utilization right was measured at the fair value  
of the consideration received, i.e. the present value of the favorable credit terms agreed 
with purchasers, and amounted to CHF 6.9 million. It will be amortized over the period of use.

There is no impairment charge or reversal included in the 2010 amortization charge.
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In million CHF

Note 15
Goodwill

2011 2010

At the beginning of the year 68.6 80.6
Increase arising from acquisition of subsidiaries 10.3 0.0
Exchange rate variances -1.4 -12.0
Total 77.5 68.6
        
        
Goodwill is allocated by Business Units (BU) as follows:
BU Sheet-fed 18.5 8.5
BU Web-fed 30.2 30.7
BU Services 28.8 29.4
Total 77.5 68.6

The Group tests goodwill annually for impairment, or more frequently if there are indications 
that goodwill might be impaired. Goodwill is allocated to the different business segments, 
and the recoverable amounts are determined by value-in-use calculations that are based 
on financial forecasts over three years approved by management. The three years forecast  
is founded on the following key assumptions, which are based on past experience: the end- 
customer industries are recovering from the crisis, but Bobst Group markets are expected 
to remain challenging due to the economic uncertainties. Volumes will recover in the next 
years and the the margin decrease experienced since 2009 due to the crisis and the exchange 
rate impact should stop. Profitability should increase over the next three years resulting  
in the mid- to long-term targets published on page 16.
Cash flows for the next three years are extrapolated from these forecasts, and cash flows 
beyond this three years period are frozen to a nil increase. The discount rates used are 
pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating to the different business segments, i.e. BU 
Sheet-fed 6.9%, BU Web-fed 6.9%, BU Services 6.2%. The management believes that 
any reasonably possible change in the key assumptions on which recoverable amounts 
are based would not cause the aggregate carrying amount to exceed the aggregate 
recoverable amount of each cash-generating unit.

At the end of the year 2011, a decrease by 10% of the future cash flows or an increase 
of 1% of the discount rates would not necessitate any impairment charge of goodwill for 
any of the three business segments.

Following the organizational change that occurred on 1 January 2010, goodwill has 
been reallocated accordingly. 

Note 16
Research & Development

CHF 69.2 million were spent on Research & Development (CHF 76.4 million in 2010). These 
costs were not capitalized in 2011 and 2010. All three business segments have focused 
their efforts on the improvement of existing models, on the development of new products, 
as well as on the research for standardization of the components of manufactured 
products of the Group.
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Note 17
Tangible fixed assets

Land and 
buildings

Investment 
property

Technical 
instal., 

industrial 
equipment

Machines 
leased to 

customers

 
IT 

equipment

 
 

Other

 
 

In progress

 
 

Total

Gross value
At the beginning of the year 2011 350.1 4.4 208.9 0.7 42.6 34.4 34.6 675.7
Additions 14.1 0.0 9.6 0.0 6.4 2.5 44.6 77.2
Disposals and decreases -8.3 -4.3 -54.5 -0.7 -8.1 -9.1 0.0 -85.0
Change in the scope of consolidation 4.4 0.0 1.4 0.0 0.3 0.6 2.6 9.3
Currency variances -2.9 -0.1 -2.2 0.0 -0.4 -0.4 -0.1 -6.1
Transfers 7.8 0.0 0.5 0.0 0.2 -0.5 -8.0 0.0
At year-end 2011 365.2 0.0 163.7 0.0 41.0 27.5 73.7 671.1

       
Accumulated depreciation
At the beginning of the year 2011 -179.0 -1.2 -166.0 -0.1 -37.5 -31.6 0.0 -415.4
Additions -10.9 0.0 -6.7 0.0 -3.2 -1.9 0.0 -22.7
Disposals and decreases 3.5 1.2 53.3 0.1 8.0 8.8 0.0 74.9
Change in the scope of consolidation 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Currency variances 1.0 0.0 1.3 0.0 0.4 0.4 0.0 3.1
Transfers -0.4 0.0 0.0 0.0 -0.1 0.5 0.0 0.0
At year-end 2011 -185.8 0.0 -118.1 0.0 -32.4 -23.8 0.0 -360.1
Net value at year-end 2011 179.4 0.0 45.6 0.0 8.6 3.7 73.7 311.0

In 2011, the investment property was sold for the amount of the purchase option 
(CHF 4.3 million).

The borrowing costs capitalized during the year ended 31 December 2011 amount 
to CHF 2.6 million (2010: 0.6 million), with a capitalization rate of 5.2%.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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In million CHF

Note 17 (continued)
Tangible fixed assets

Land and 
buildings

Investment 
property

Technical 
instal., 

industrial 
equipment

Machines 
leased to 

customers

 
IT 

equipment

 
 

Other

 
 

In progress

 
 

Total

Gross value
At the beginning of the year 2010 484.7 0.0 219.1 0.1 53.2 38.8 8.7 804.6
Additions 2.4 0.0 3.3 0.8 3.3 0.5 30.3 40.6
Disposals and decreases -113.4 0.0 -8.8 -0.1 -11.8 -2.1 -1.3 -137.5
Currency variances -19.8 0.0 -7.1 -0.1 -2.1 -2.8 -0.1 -32.0
Transfers -3.8 4.4 2.4 0.0 0.0 0.0 -3.0 0.0
At year-end 2010 350.1 4.4 208.9 0.7 42.6 34.4 34.6 675.7

       
Accumulated depreciation
At the beginning of the year 2010 -269.7 0.0 -170.4 -0.1 -48.4 -34.0 0.0 -522.6
Additions -10.6 0.0 -7.9 -0.1 -3.0 -1.9 0.0 -23.5
Disposals and decreases 92.7 0.0 7.7 0.1 11.8 1.8 0.0 114.1
Currency variances 7.4 0.0 4.6 0.0 2.1 2.5 0.0 16.6
Transfers 1.2 -1.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
At year-end 2010 -179.0 -1.2 -166.0 -0.1 -37.5 -31.6 0.0 -415.4
Net value at year-end 2010 171.1 3.2 42.9 0.6 5.1 2.8 34.6 260.3

In 2010, the Bobst Group owned a real estate property that was no longer used for its 
operations and was currently leased to a third party. As at 31 December 2010, the fair 
value of this investment property amounted to CHF 4.4 million. This fair value was based 
on a purchase option held by a third party, which had a high likelihood to be exercised.

Tangible fixed assets are insured at the replacement value of CHF 655 million (2010: CHF 
736 million). There is no impairment charge (2010: CHF 0.0 million) or reversal included  
in the annual depreciation charge of CHF 22.7 million (2010: CHF 23.5 million). There are no 
significant tangible fixed assets financed with leases.
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In million CHF

Note 18
Investments in associates

          2011 2010

Unlisted associates (interest held in %):       
Duo-Technik GmbH 40.00% 40.00%
BHS Group 30.00% 30.00%

        
Changes over period are the following:
Beginning of the year 55.8 63.6
Share of result of associates 1.5 2.8
Dividends received 0.0 -0.1
Exchange differences -1.5 -10.5
Total 55.8 55.8

Goodwill related to investments in associates is included in theses figures.

Summarized financial information regarding the Group’s associates is set out below:
Total assets 286.4 288.7
Total liabilities -102.4 -104.8
Net assets 184.0 183.9
     
Group’s share of associates’ net assets 55.8 55.8
     
Total sales of associates 266.4 269.1
     
Total net result of the period 4.9 9.1
   
Group’s share of associates’ net result of the period 1.5 2.8

There are no unrecognized losses on associates.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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In million CHF

Note 19
Receivables and prepaid expenses

2011 2010

Current
Non-

current Total Current
Non-

current Total 

Trade receivables from third parties 233.6 1.4 235.0 215.8 1.9 217.7
Receivables from the sale of fixed assets 1.4 81.7 83.1 0.0 78.7 78.7
Various receivables from third parties 51.1 13.8 64.9 54.8 13.9 68.7
Prepaid expenses 4.9 1.0 5.9 6.8 1.0 7.8
Total 291.0 97.9 388.9 277.4 95.5 372.9

Non-current receivables from the sale of fixed assets relate to the sale of properties in 
Switzerland. This amount has been discounted at a rate of 3.75%.

Note 20
Finance lease receivables

Finance lease receivables include discounted receivables with recourse amounting to 
CHF 0.6 million (2010: CHF 1.9 million). The Group remains responsible until the transferred 
receivables are paid in full. The corresponding liability appears under trade and other 
payables.

The discounted receivables with recourse are not included in the following analysis.

 2011 2010

Maturity within one year 9.3 15.7
Maturity after one year 13.7 19.1
Total 23.0 34.8
Less: unearned finance income -3.0 -4.1
Total 20.0 30.7
       
Analyzed as:        
Recoverable within one year 8.2 14.2
Recoverable after one year 11.8 16.5
Total 20.0 30.7

The Group enters into finance lease arrangements with clients for the machines sold. 

The weighted average term of finance lease contracts is 3.2 years for 2011 (2010: 2.8 years).

The average interest rate of all the lease contracts is approximately 6.8% (2010: 6.6%)  
per annum.
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In million CHF

Note 21
Credit risk related to client receivables

2011 2010

Trade receivables 254.3 238.1
Finance lease receivables 25.9 39.7
Total gross value 280.2 277.8
Less provision for impairment -24.6 -27.5
Total for the analysis 255.6 250.3
  
      
The aging of the amounts past due but not impaired is as follows:
< 2 months 41.2 34.6
2–6 months 13.1 9.8
> 6 months 8.8 6.6
    
+ not yet due 192.5 199.3
      
Total 255.6 250.3

       2011 2010

Movements in the provision for impairment were as follows:
At the beginning of the year -27.5 -35.0
Changes in the scope of consolidation 0.0 1.7
Additions -3.6 -4.0
Utilizations 3.5 5.9
Releases 2.6 0.5
Reclassifications 0.0 -0.1
Currency variances 0.4 3.5
At year-end -24.6 -27.5

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying amount of client 
receivables mentioned above.
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In million CHF

Note 22
Derivative financial instruments

2011 2010

Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities

Forward foreign exchange contracts 0.5 10.4 19.1 1.4
Total 0.5 10.4 19.1 1.4

       
Less non current portion:
Forward foreign exchange contracts 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.0
Total 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.0

      
Current portion 0.5 10.4 19.0 1.4

Currency derivatives (forwards)
The Group utilizes currency derivatives to hedge significant future transactions and 
cash flows. The Group is party to a variety of foreign currency forward contracts in 
the management of its exchange exposures. The instruments purchased are primarily 
denominated in the currencies of the Group’s principal markets. The forwards are in 
principle designated to address exchange rate exposures for the following  twelve months 
and are renewed on a revolving basis as required.

On the balance sheet date, the total notional amount of outstanding forward foreign 
exchange contracts to which the Group is committed amounts to CHF 246.1 million 
(2010: CHF 358.7 million).

The fair value of currency derivatives that are designated and effective as cash flow 
hedges (hedge accounting) representing a liability of CHF 3.8 million (2010: an asset  
of CHF 2.6 million) is recorded through other comprehensive income. This represents a 
variation of CHF -6.4 million (2010: 2.0 million) compared with previous year.

The Group does not currently designate its foreign currency denominated debt as  
a hedging instrument for the purpose of hedging the translation of its foreign operations.

35.indd   99 26.03.2012   20:54:53



100

Bobst Group SA  Financial statements 2011 – Consolidated financial statements

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In million CHF

Note 23
Borrowings

2011 2010

Current
Non- 

current Total Current
Non- 

current Total

Bank borrowings 29.8 15.7 45.5 21.9 14.3 36.2
Debenture bonds 0.0 497.4 497.4 92.2 347.3 439.5
Other borrowings 0.6 1.2 1.8 0.4 1.0 1.4
Total 30.4 514.3 544.7 114.5 362.6 477.1
        
Thereof due in < 1 year 30.4 0.0 30.4 114.5 0.0 114.5
Thereof due in 1–5 years 0.0 509.5 509.5 0.0 362.6 362.6
Thereof due in > 5 years 0.0 4.8 4.8 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total 30.4 514.3 544.7 114.5 362.6 477.1
          
Currency composition of borrowings:
CHF   93.1%    94.2%
EUR    1.4%    2.0%
USD    2.7%    0.1%
GBP    0.2%    0.1%
Other    2.6%    3.6%
Total    100.0%    100.0%
         
The effective interest rates at the  
balance sheet date (current and  
non-current) were as follows:
Bank and other borrowings   2.8%   4.9%
Debenture bonds   4.2%   4.4%
               
Borrowings facilities:
Borrowings at floating rate   12.8   9.1
Borrowings at fixed rate   531.9   468.0
Total   544.7   477.1

Borrowings arranged at fixed rates expose the Group to fair value interest risk, and 
borrowings arranged at floating rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk.

The main borrowings are:
 — a debenture bond issued by Bobst Group SA of CHF 100 million, maturing in July 2013, 

fixed interest rate of 4.125%, no clause of anticipated repayment, quoted at SIX Swiss 
Exchange;

 — a debenture bond issued by Bobst Group SA of CHF 250 million, maturing in June 2015, 
fixed interest rate of 5%, no clause of anticipated repayment, quoted at SIX Swiss 
Exchange;

 — a debenture bond issued on 5 May 2011 by Bobst Group SA of CHF 150 million, 
maturing in May 2014, fixed interest rate of 2.75%, no clause of anticipated repayment, 
quoted at SIX Swiss Exchange;

 — various utilizations under bank facilities, such as current account overdrafts and fixed 
term loans, most of them non-secured. The assets pledged for this purpose are tangible 
assets for CHF 7.5 million in 2011 (2010: CHF 12.3 million).
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In million CHF

Note 24
Analysis and other information related to financial instruments and capital 
management

The Group classifies its financial assets and liabilities into the following categories  
as per IFRS 7:

Financial assets

2011 2010

    
Carrying 
amount Fair value

Carrying 
amount Fair value

At fair value  
through  

profit or loss

Loans  
and  

receivables

Financial assets other 4.8 4.8 2.7 2.7  x
Trade receivables 235.0 235.0 217.7 217.7  x
Finance lease receivables 20.6 22.3 32.6 35.3  x
Other receivables 136.7 136.7 137.7 137.7  x
Derivative financial instruments 0.5 0.5 19.1 19.1 x  
Cash and cash equivalents 288.5 288.5 313.8 313.8  x
Total 686.1 687.8 723.6 726.3

Financial liabilities

2011 2010

      
Carrying 
amount Fair value

Carrying 
amount Fair value

At fair value  
through  

profit or loss

Other  
financial  
liabilities

Borrowings-Bank and other current 30.4 30.4 22.3 22.3  x
Borrowings-Bank and  
other non-current 16.9 16.9 15.3 15.3  x
Borrowings-Debenture bonds 497.4 456.7 439.5 492.0  x
Trade and other payables 251.1 251.1 275.5 275.5  x
Derivative financial instruments 10.4 10.4 1.4 1.4 x  
Total 806.2 765.5 754.0 806.5

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities are included in the amount at which 
the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other 
than in a forced or liquidation sale.

The Group uses the following methods and assumptions in estimating the fair value of 
assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis:

 — the carrying amount of financial assets other, trade receivables, other receivables, 
cash and cash equivalents, trade and other payables approximate their fair value;

 — the fair value of finance lease receivables and borrowings are estimated by discounting 
their future cash flows at market rates;

 — the fair value of derivative financial instruments are determined using price quotes for 
similar instruments, appropriately adjusted. The fair value obtained represents a level 
2 input unless significant unobservable inputs are used.
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In million CHF

Note 24 (continued)
Analysis and other information related to financial instruments and capital 
management

Fair value hierarchy
The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value  
of financial instruments by valuation technique:
Level  1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2:  inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for 

the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from 
prices).

Level 3:  techniques which use inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair 
value that are not based on observable market data.

All assets and liabilities measured at fair value as at 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010 
represent a Level 2 fair value measurement.

During the reporting period ending 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010, there were 
no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value measurements, and no transfers into 
and out of Level 3 fair value measurements.

Liquidity risk
The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities based 
on contractual undiscounted payments.

 
 

2011
Less than  

1 year

Between  
1 and  

5 years

 
Over  

5 years 2010
Less than  

1 year

Between  
1 and  

5 years

 
Over  

5 years

Borrowings 607.0 40.2 562.0 4.8 548.4 124.9 423.5 0.0
Trade and other payables 251.1 245.7 5.4 0.0 275.5 270.6 4.9 0.0
Derivative financial instruments 10.4 10.4 0.0 0.0 1.4 1.4 0.0 0.0
Total 868.5 296.3 567.4 4.8 825.3 396.9 428.4 0.0

The carrying amounts of the financial assets and liabilities are denominated in the 
following currencies:

                  CHF EUR USD GBP Other
Elimina-

tions Total

Financial assets 2011 280.6 350.8 124.1 23.3 96.3 -189.0 686.1
Financial assets 2010 266.1 435.1 93.1 32.3 80.0 -183.0 723.6
             
Financial liabilities 2011 868.1 249.3 83.8 27.6 136.4 -559.0 806.2
Financial liabilities 2010 703.7 351.8 51.3 37.1 53.2 -443.1 754.0
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In million CHF

Note 24 (continued)
Analysis and other information related to financial instruments and capital 
management

Sensitivity analysis for currency risk:
The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a:

 — 10% decrease/increase in the CHF/USD (2010: 10%);
 — 10% decrease/increase in the CHF/EUR (2010: 10%);
 — 10% decrease/increase in the CHF/GBP (2010: 10%).

2011 2010

Profit and Loss Equity Profit and Loss Equity

CHF/USD +/- 1.6 4.0 2.8 1.8
CHF/EUR +/- 8.3 – 7.4 –
CHF/GBP +/- 0.2 – 1.5 –

Sensitivity analysis for interest rate risk:
If the market interest rates on cash and borrowings at floating rate had been 100 basis 
points higher at year-end, the net interest effect would have been CHF 3.0 million (2010:  
CHF 3.1 million) higher.

Capital management:
According to the mid- to long-term financial targets disclosed on page 16, the equity ratio 
target has been lowered to around 35% in 2011.

 2011 2010

Total equity 580.8 577.7
Total balance sheet 1'717.6 1'643.4
Equity ratio 33.8% 35.2%
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In million CHF

Note 25
Deferred taxes

2011 2010

Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities

Fixed assets 0.4 33.6 1.0 40.4
Inventories 7.6 27.6 8.0 24.7
Receivables 3.6 1.9 4.8 0.8
Employee benefits 3.3 21.1 4.9 10.9
Provisions 5.0 10.3 4.9 19.7
Other 9.9 2.3 2.5 5.3
Loss carry-forwards 14.7 0.0 14.0 0.0
Gross deferred taxes 44.5 96.8 40.1 101.8
Offset of assets and liabilities -8.8 -8.8 -6.9 -6.9
Net deferred taxes 35.7 88.0 33.2 94.9

Certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset in accordance with the IFRS.

On the balance sheet date, the Group has unused tax losses of CHF 83.5 million 
(2010: CHF 107.2 million) available to offset against future profits. Included in these 
unrecognized tax losses are losses of CHF 5.8 million (2010: CHF 9.4 million) that will  
expire within a limit of time (CHF 4.6 million expiring within two to five years and  
CHF 1.2 million within more than five years), whereas other may be carried forward 
indefinitely. The impact of losses on income tax is mentioned in note 11.

No material additional tax liabilities due to dividend payments from subsidiaries and 
associates are expected. There are no income tax consequences related to the payment  
of dividends by Bobst Group SA to its shareholders.

The decrease of CHF 9.4 million (2010: increase of CHF 7.1 million) in net deferred tax 
liabilities can be explained by:

 — a decrease of CHF 9.4 million (2010: increase of CHF 2.8 million) recognized in the profit 
and loss statement;

 — a decrease of CHF 2.5 million (2010: increase of CHF 0.8 million) recognized directly in 
other comprehensive income;

 — an increase of CHF 2.5 million due to the change in the scope of consolidation (2010: nil).
There is no impact in 2011 (2010: CHF 3.5 million) due to exchange variations.

Note 26
Inventories

         2011 2010

Raw materials 191.2 170.0
Work in progress 92.3 89.1
Finished products* 100.7 96.3
Total 384.2 355.4

*  Including CHF 19.2 million (2010: CHF 14.3 million) for demo machines.

The carrying amount of inventories carried at the realizable value (less costs to sell) is  
CHF 54.4 million (2010: CHF 70.4 million).

The amount for write-down recognized as expense during the year is CHF 14.1 million 
(2010: CHF 15.0 million).
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Note 27
Share capital

2011 2010 2009
Number of  

registered shares 
par value  

CHF 1.–

Number of  
registered shares  

par value  
CHF 1.–

Number of  
registered shares 

par value  
CHF 1.–

Issued shares
Balance at 1 January 17'810'002  17'810'002  17'810'002  
Balance at  
31 December 17'810'002  17'810'002  17'810'002  

        
Shareholders
JBF Finance SA 8'747'210 49.12% 8'369'791 47.00% 8'049'899 45.20%
Nortrust Nominees Ltd. 1'982'970 11.13% 2'034'412 11.42% 2'131'924 11.97%
Public Shareholders 5'788'298 32.50% 6'114'275 34.33% 6'336'655 35.58%
Total shares  
outstanding 16'518'478      16'518'478  16'518'478  
Treasury shares 1'291'524 7.25% 1'291'524 7.25% 1'291'524 7.25%
Total shares issued 17'810'002 100.00% 17'810'002 100.00% 17'810'002 100.00%
   
    
Treasury shares in 
million CHF
Book value 1.4  1.4  1.4  
Market value 30.1  55.5  48.4  

Note 28
Dividends

At the Annual General Meetings of Shareholders held on 4 May 2011 and on 28 April 2010, 
the shareholders renounced the distribution of any dividend.

No dividend will be proposed by the Board of Directors. This proposal is subject  
to approval by the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders on  
26 April 2012.
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Note 29
Provisions

Warranties/ 
Product 

liabilities Litigations Restructuring Other 2011 2010

At the beginning of the year 26.0 5.7 0.6 8.0 40.3 54.6
Changes in the scope of consolidation 0.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.2 -1.7
Additions 27.8 2.9 0.6 0.4 31.7 27.6
Utilizations -22.6 -0.9 -0.5 -3.4 -27.4 -30.3
Releases -0.5 -0.4 0.0 -0.1 -1.0 -2.9
Reclassifications 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 -1.7
Currency translation adjustment -0.4 -0.2 0.0 0.0 -0.6 -5.3
At year-end 30.5 7.1 0.7 4.9 43.2 40.3
              
Of which non-current 0.1 1.5 0.0 2.0 3.6 3.8
Of which current 30.4 5.6 0.7 2.9 39.6 36.5
At year-end 30.5 7.1 0.7 4.9 43.2 40.3

For more detailed information regarding provisions, refer to note 2.
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Note 30
Pension plans and other employee benefits

The Group has, apart from the legally required social security schemes, several independent 
pension and other post employment benefit plans, as well as other long-term employee 
benefits.

The defined benefit plans are either externally funded, with the assets of the schemes 
held separately from those of the Group in independently administrated funds, or unfunded. 

For the funded plans, the deficit or excess of the fair value of plan assets over the 
present value of the defined benefit obligation is recognized as a liability or an asset in the 
balance sheet, taking into account any unrecognized actuarial gains and losses and past 
service cost.

For the unfunded plans, the related liabilities are carried on the balance sheet.
Other long-term employee benefits represent amounts due to employees under 

deferred compensation arrangements, such as long-service awards, jubilee premiums 
and end of service indemnities depending upon certain seniority criteria. The related 
obligation is accrued in liabilities.

The following is a summary of the status of the main post-employment and other long-
term employee benefit  plans as at 31 December 2011 and 2010:

             2011 2010

Benefit obligation at the beginning of the year -1'046.8 -1'037.2
Service cost -17.8 -20.8
Interest cost -29.6 -34.1
Employee contributions -11.5 -11.5
Benefit payments 50.1 66.1
Plan amendments 7.8 -2.2
Curtailments 1.1 0.0
Termination benefits 0.0 0.0
Actuarial gains/losses -44.1 -17.2
Foreign currency translation 0.4 10.1
Benefit obligation at year-end -1'090.4 -1'046.8
of which unfunded -53.4 -47.5
      
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year 1'004.7 1'003.3
Expected return on plan assets 40.2 44.4
Actuarial gains/losses -41.2 -13.2
Employee contributions 11.5 11.5
Employer contributions 17.7 23.3
Benefit payments -46.0 -58.9
Foreign currency translation -0.1 -5.7
Fair value of plan assets at year-end 986.8 1'004.7
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Note 30 (continued)
Pension plans and other employee benefits

         2011 2010

Funded status: (deficit)/surplus -103.6 -42.1
Unrecognized actuarial (gains)/losses 144.4 63.6
Unrecognized past service cost 0.7 0.8
Defined benefits net assets/(liabilities) in the balance sheet 41.5 22.3
Liabilities from defined contribution plans -0.8 -0.6
Net assets/(liabilities) in the balance sheet 40.7 21.7

        
Reflected in the balance sheet as follows:
Employee benefits assets 89.3 66.2
Pension plans and other employee benefits liabilities -48.6 -44.5
Net assets/(liabilities) in the balance sheet 40.7 21.7

          
The movement in the net defined benefits liabilities is as follows:
Net assets/(liabilities) in the balance sheet at the beginning of the year 22.3 2.2
Net periodic benefit cost -2.8 -13.7
Employer contributions 17.7 23.3
Benefit payments 4.1 7.2
Foreign currency translation 0.2 3.3
Net assets/(liabilities) in the balance sheet at year-end 41.5 22.3

           
The net periodic benefit cost recorded in the income statement consists  
of the following components:
Service cost 17.8 20.8
Interest cost 29.6 34.1
Expected return on plan assets -40.2 -44.4
Recognized actuarial (gains)/losses 4.4 2.2
Recognized past service cost -7.7 1.0
Curtailments -1.1 0.0
Termination benefits 0.0 0.0
Total defined benefit expenses 2.8 13.7

These expenses are included in personnel costs (note 7).

The actuarial assumptions used to calculate the benefit obligations vary according to the 
economic conditions of the country in which the plan is located. 

The main assumptions are as follows:

2011 2010

Discount rate 2.40% 2.90%
Expected return on plan assets 4.00% 4.00%
Expected rate of salary increase 2.00% 2.00%
Medical cost trend rate 8.48% 8.80%
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Note 30 (continued)
Pension plans and other employee benefits

                 2011 2010

The effects of a 1% movement in the assumed medical cost trend rate were as follows:
Effect on total service cost and interest cost +0.2 / -0.2 +0.2 / -0.2
Effect on the defined benefit obligation +3.5 / -2.8 +2.8 / -2.3

         
The weighted average asset allocation of funded defined benefit plans at the year end is 
as follows:
Equity securities 28.10% 30.90%
Debt securities 37.50% 37.10%
Real estate 25.80% 25.10%
Cash and other investments 8.60% 6.90%

The plans have no investment in Bobst Group’s own financial instruments or property used 
by entities of the Group.

The actual return on plan assets amounts to CHF -0.9 million for the year 2011 (2010: 
CHF 31.2 million).

Expected contributions to defined benefit plans for the year ending 31 December 2012 
are estimated at CHF 21.5 million (employer contributions for funded plans or benefits 
payments for unfunded plans).

The main amounts of the defined benefit plans for the current and previous periods are as 
follows:

         2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

Defined benefit obligation at the  
year end -1'090.4 -1'046.8 -1'037.2 -1'030.1 -1'029.3
Plan assets at the year end 986.8 1'004.7 1'003.3 919.1 1'077.7
Funded status: (deficit)/surplus -103.6 -42.1 -33.9 -111.0 48.4
       
Experience adjustments on plan  
obligations: gains/(losses) 8.9 21.4 34.7 -8.9 13.9
Experience adjustments on plan assets: 
gains/(losses) -41.2 -13.2 50.9 -178.7 -33.6

Note 31
Share-based payment compensation

A predefined portion of the bonus of key executives is share-settled. All the rights attached 
to the shares are definitely transferred at the grant date (no vesting conditions), except  
the sale which is blocked for a period of three years. The number of shares granted depends 
on the share market price at the grant date.

For the performance period that ended 31 December 2011, 4'529 shares have been 
granted (2010: 4'226).

The expense recorded in 2011 in the personnel costs amounts to CHF 0.1 million (2010: 
CHF 0.2 million).
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Note 32
Business combination

On 18 January 2011, the Group announced the acquisition of 65% of Gordon Ltd. Bobst and 
Gordon product ranges have a high degree of complementarity, and the two companies 
will each continue to develop technologically advanced products and services that answer 
the business needs of their respective customers.

The non-controlling interest recognized at the acquisition was measured by reference 
to the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

Fair value recogni-
zed on acquisition

The assets and liabilities arising from the acquisition are as follows:
Intangible fixed assets 17.2
Tangible fixed assets 9.3
Deferred tax assets 0.5
Inventories 7.7
Trade and other receivables 16.3
Cash 11.1
Provisions -0.2
Pension plans and other employee benefits -0.1
Deferred tax liabilities -3.0
Trade and other payables -25.7
Net assets at fair value 33.1
Non-controlling interest -0.5
Net assets at fair value acquired 32.6

Consideration transferred 31.5
+ non-controlling interest 11.4
- fair value of identifiable net assets -32.6
Goodwill arising on acquisition 10.3

Consideration paid in cash 31.5
- Cash acquired -11.1
Net cash outflow on acquisition 20.4

The goodwill of CHF 10.3 million comprises the value of expected synergies arising from 
the acquisition, revenue growth and future market development. These benefits are  
not recognized separately from the goodwill because they do not meet the recognition 
criteria for identifiable assets. None of the goodwill recognized is expected to be 
deductible for income tax purposes.

The fair value and the gross amount of receivables amounts to CHF 16.3 million. None of 
the receivables have been impaired and it is expected that the full contractual amounts 
can be collected.

Transaction costs of CHF 1.3 million have been excluded from the consideration transferred 
and have been recognized as an expense in the current year for CHF 0.3 million and in 2010 
for CHF 1.0 million.

Impact of acquisition on the results of the Group
Included in the sales for the period is CHF 49.7 million and CHF 5.7 million in the net profit 
attributable to the additional business generated by Gordon Ltd which belongs to the 
Business Unit Sheet-fed.

35.indd   110 26.03.2012   17:24:34



111

Bobst Group SA  Financial statements 2011 – Consolidated financial statements

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED  
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In million CHF

Note 33
Disposal of subsidiaries

On 1 October 2010, Bobst Group disposed of Atlas Converting Equipment Ltd in Bedford 
(UK), with its brands Atlas and Titan. The brand products Atlas and Titan were not 
commonly used by the traditional Bobst Group customers, resulting in a low synergy level.

The loss on disposal is included in other operating expenses (note 9).

No disposal in 2011.

2011 2010

The net assets, at the date of the disposal, were the following:
Tangible fixed assets 0.1
Inventories 16.0
Receivables 11.3
Other assets 0.3
Cash and cash equivalents 3.8

Borrowings -8.6
Provisions -1.7
Trade payables -17.2
Other liabilities -0.2
Net assets disposed of 0.0 3.8
Loss on disposal (note 9) -3.8
Cash received 0.0 0.0

Net cash outflow arising on disposal:
Cash received 0.0
Cash and cash equivalents disposed -3.8
Net cash disposed 0.0 -3.8

Note 34
Changes in the scope of consolidation

Company Transaction Control % Business unit Country Date

2011
Bobst Group Trading SA, Prilly Merger(1) 100% Sheet-fed CH 01.07.2011
Bobst Group Taiwan Ltd, Taipei Liquidation 100% Sheet-fed/ 

Services
TW 01.04.2011 

Gordon Ltd, Hong Kong Acquisition 65% Sheet-fed CN 18.01.2011

(1) merger with Bobst SA, Prilly

2010
Bobst Canada Inc., Pointe Claire 
 

Merger(2)

 
100% 

 
Sheet-fed/ 

Web-fed/ 
Services

CA 
 

31.12.2010 
 

Atlas Converting Equipment Ltd,  
Kempston, Bedford

Disposal  100% Web-fed/ 
Services

GB 01.10.2010 

Fischer & Krecke Inc., Fairfield Merger(2) 100% Web-fed/ 
Services

US 30.03.2010 

(2) merger with Bobst Group North America, Inc., Roseland.
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Note 35
Related parties

Investments in associates BHS Group, D-Weiherhammer.
 Duo-Technik GmbH, D-Lauterbach.

Main shareholder JBF Finance SA, CH-Buchillon.

Key management personnel Board members of Bobst Group SA.
 Thierry de Kalbermatten,
 as Vice Chairman of our Board and 
 Vice Chairman of the Board of JBF Finance SA.
 Alain Guttmann,
 as member of our Board,
 and member of the Board of JBF Finance SA.
 Group Executive Committee members.
 Jean-Pascal Bobst,
 as Chief Executive Officer of our Group Executive 
 Committee,
 and member of the Board of JBF Finance SA.

Bobst employee benefit plans

Entities controlled by members TDK Consulting Sàrl, CH-Bettens.
of key management personnel CapDconsulting Guttmann, CH-Lussy-sur-Morges.

Transactions with the related parties over 2011 and 2010:

2011 2010

Investments in associates
Sales 0.0 0.2
Purchases 1.4 2.8
Receivables and prepaid expenses 0.0 0.1
Trade and other payables 0.1 0.4
Rendering or receiving of services/transfer of R&D 0.1 0.1
Loans to them 0.0 0.0

There is one current guarantee for EUR 1.7 million (2010: EUR 1.7 million) released in April 
2002 by Bobst Group SA in favor of a bank to guarantee a loan to a related party. Sales were 
made at usual list prices, discounted, to reflect the quantity of goods in question and the 
relationships between parties at market prices.

2011 2010

Key management personnel compensation
Short-term benefits 4.7 6.0
Post-employment benefits 0.4 1.4
Share-based compensation 0.1 0.2

Bobst employee benefit institutions
Open payables due to them at year-end 4.5 4.1

Entities controlled by members of key management personnel
Honorarium billed to Bobst Group SA 0.4 0.4

There is no engagement with related parties which is not yet booked.
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Note 36
Subsequent events

The consolidated financial statements were approved for publication by the Board  
of Directors on 16 March 2012. They are also subject to approval by the Annual General 
Meeting of Shareholders. 

No events have occurred up to 16 March 2012, which would necessitate additional 
adjustments to the book values of the Group's assets or liabilities, or which require 
disclosure.

Note 37
Contingent liabilities

           2011 2010

Guarantee obligations in favor of third parties 2.2 2.6

Contingent liabilities are mentioned for the full nominal amount.

Note 38
Capital commitments

As at 31 December 2011, the Group has capital commitments of CHF 11.7 million  
(2010: 42.8 million) relating to the construction project in Mex, Switzerland and  
CHF 7.4 million (2010: 10.4 million) for the optimization of the production equipment.

Note 39
Exchange rates

Balance sheet Profit & loss statement

2011 2010 2011 2010

Main exchange rates
Euroland 1 EUR 1.22 1.25 1.23 1.38
USA 1 USD 0.94 0.94 0.89 1.04
United Kingdom 1 GBP 1.45 1.45 1.42 1.61
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Note 40
Board and Executive compensation disclosures as required by Swiss law

General principles

Introduction
The compensation policy is essentially based on compensation conforming to Swiss 
mechanical industry companies active internationally. It aims to maintain a performance 
culture.

Comparison criteria
Periodically, every two to three years, amounts and components of the compensation of 
the Group Executive Committee are benchmarked against those of Executive Committee 
members of companies active in the same area than Bobst Group (as described in 
Introduction above).

Responsibility and procedure for the determination of the remuneration

Board of Directors
The Chairman of the Board makes proposals to the Compensation and Nomination 
Committee for the individual remuneration of the members of the Board. This proposal 
is usually made during the ordinary meeting of the Compensation and Nomination 
Committee in December.

The compensation is made pro rata for the period of their mandate for members joining 
or leaving during the year.

Group Executive Committee
The Compensation and Nomination Committee approves, upon proposal by the Chairman 
of the Board, the total compensation of the Chief Executive Officer. He informs the Board 
of such total compensation.

The Compensation and Nomination Committee also approves, upon proposal by the 
Chief Executive Officer, the total compensation of each ordinary member of the Group 
Executive Committee and submits to the Board of Directors for approval the global amount 
of compensation of all the ordinary members of the Group Executive Committee. 

These proposals are made in March during the ordinary meeting of the Compensation 
and Nomination Committee, and are based, for the variable portion, on the appraisal of 
objectives met, as set for the year under review.

Compensation system

Board of Directors
The members of the Board of Directors receive a fixed remuneration and a representation 
allowance in cash. Travel and other expenses in relation with their mandate are reimbursed. 
They do not have a variable compensation based on performance.

The compensation amount of the members of the Board that follows the compensation 
policy (see Introduction above) is set at the discretion of the Compensation and Nomination 
Committee.

The members of the Board are all non executive and thus, none of them has operational 
management tasks within Bobst Group SA, nor any subsidiary. None of the members of the 
Board had been a member of the management of Bobst Group SA, nor of any subsidiary  
for the last three years. Mr. Alain Guttmann was mandated to supervise the implementation 
of the Group strategy in China.
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Note 40 (continued)
Board and Executive compensation disclosures as required by Swiss law

Group Executive Committee
The remuneration of the members of the Group Executive Committee is composed of  
the following components:
—  base remuneration in cash representing 50 to 60% of budgeted total remuneration;
—  variable portion, linked to performance – 90% in cash (Short Term Incentive – STI),  

and 10% in shares vested for three years (Long Term Incentive – LTI) – representing  
40 to 50% of the budgeted total remuneration;

—  contribution to social insurance and pension funds. 

In 2011, the remuneration was based as per table below:

Compensation system for the members of the Group Executive Committee

% of budgeted 
total remuneration

Base remuneration Cash 50 – 60

+

Variable remuneration 90% cash (STI), 10% in Bobst Group SA vested shares (for 3 years) (LTI) 40 – 50

The variable portion is based on the parameters indicated in the table below:

% of budgeted 
variable remuneration

Group operating result (a, b) 25
Group ROCE (a, c) 25
Business Unit operating result (a, d) 0 – 20
Group Supply, Production and Logistics efficiency (a)  0 – 20
Personal objectives (e) 30 – 50

a) Compared with the budgeted figures.
(b) As defined on page 67 of the consolidated financial statements of this annual report.
(c) ROCE (Return on Capital Employed).
(d)  Business Units as described in point 3.5 on page 50, and on pages 18 and 19. The operating result by Business 

Unit is defined on pages 24, 28, 32, and on page 90 of the consolidated financial statements of this annual report.
(e) Represents five to ten quantitative and qualitative personal objectives fixed each year.

The objectives are determined at the beginning of the year between the Chairman of the 
Board and the Chief Executive Officer, and between the Chief Executive Officer and the 
individual members of the Group Executive Committee. The appraisal of objectives met is 
performed when establishing the financial statements for the year under review. For all 
the above objectives, excluding the personal objectives, a gate at 70% must be achieved to 
qualify for compensation. The amount of the latter is set with a cap at 150%.

The Group Executive Committee is affiliated to Company pension funds complemented 
by additional pension coverage for a portion of income.

All Group Executive members have a notice of termination of twelve months.
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Note 40 (continued)
Board and Executive compensation disclosures as required by Swiss law

In 2010, the remuneration of the members of the Group Executive Committee was based  
as per table below:

Compensation system of the members of the Group Executive Committee

In % of budgeted  
total remuneration

Base salary Cash 50 – 60

+

Variable remuneration 90% cash, 10% vested shares of Bobst Group SA (for 3 years) 40 – 50

The variable portion is based on the parameters indicated in the table below:

In % of budgeted
variable remuneration

Group operating result (a) 25
Group ROCE (a) 25
Business Unit operating result (a) 0 – 20
Group Supply, Production and Logistics efficiency (a) 0 – 20
Personal objectives (b) 30 – 50

(a) Compared with the budgeted figures.
(b) Represents five to ten quantitative and qualitative personal objectives fixed each year.

A gate at 70% of objectives/budget achievements is set up as well as a cap at 150%.

The Group Executive Committee is affiliated to Company pension funds complemented by 
additional pension coverage for a portion of the income.

All Group Executive members have a notice of termination of twelve months.

Other compensation
The members of the Board and of the Group Executive Committee do not receive any other 
component of compensation than those detailed above. They do not benefit from the 
following elements:

Severance pay
The members of the Board and of the Group Executive Committee do not contractually 

have severance pay. 

Compensation for members of governing bodies

Total remuneration of the Board of Directors
In 2011, the Board of Directors decided to maintain the reduction of the annual fixed 
compensation of Board members by 10%. The total remuneration granted in 2011  
to the members of the Board of Directors amounts to CHF 1.19 million.
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Note 40 (continued)
Board and Executive compensation disclosures as required by Swiss law

Members of the Board Cash in CHF

Charles Gebhard, Chairman 309'000
Thierry de Kalbermatten, Vice Chairman 219'000
Ulf Berg 138'000
Christian Engel (retired from the Board AGM 04.05.2011) 69'000
Michael W.O. Garrett 138'000
Hans Rudolf Widmer 156'000
Alain Guttmann 156'000
Total remuneration 2011 1'185'000

In 2010, the Board of Directors has decided to reduce the annual fees of the Board 
members by 10%. The total remuneration granted in 2010 to the members of the  
Board of Directors amounts to CHF 1.33 million.

Members of the Board Cash in CHF

Charles Gebhard, Chairman 309'000
Thierry de Kalbermatten, Vice Chairman 219'000
Ulf Berg 138'000
Christian Engel 138'000
Michael W.O. Garrett 138'000
Maia Wentland Forte (retired from the Board AGM 28.04.2010) 78'000
Hans Rudolf Widmer 156'000
Alain Guttmann 156'000
Total remuneration 2010 1'332'000

None of the Board members are affiliated to the Group’s pension funds.
In addition, the Group had to pay the contributions for the Federal Old Age, Survivor 

and Disability Insurance (AVS) and the Unemployment Insurance amounting to 
CHF 50'869.– (2010: CHF 59'252.–).

Total remuneration of the members of the Group Executive Committee
The total remuneration of the nine members of the Group Executive Committee in 2011, 
pro rata for the period of their mandate (average equivalent of 5.4 full time), amounts  
to CHF 3.79 million (details as per table below). 

Base 
remuneration Variable portion Pension plans

Payment  
in kind Total 2011

 Cash CHF Cash CHF
Shares  

number* CHF CHF CHF

Total remuneration:
Group Executive Committee 2'253'854 974'078 4'529 442'365 23'400 3'785'224
Highest compensation:
Jean-Pascal Bobst, CEO 678'500 341'250 2'264 85'843 4'320 1'155'666
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Note 40 (continued)
Board and Executive compensation disclosures as required by Swiss law

The total remuneration of the six members of the Group Executive Committee in 2010 
amounts to CHF 5.85 million (details as per table below).

Base salary Variable portion Pension plans
Payment  

in kind Total 2010

 Cash CHF Cash CHF
Shares  

number* CHF CHF CHF

Total remuneration:
Group Executive Committee 2'676'480 1'638'559 4'226 1'357'213 25'920 5'854'010
Highest compensation:
Jean-Pascal Bobst, CEO 678'500 593'248 1'539 397'995 4'320 1'730'815

*  The value of a bonus in shares, the sale of which is blocked for a period of three years, is equal to 83.96% of their 
market value at the date of attribution. The share price at the date of attribution was CHF 24.07  
(2010: CHF 43.92).

In addition, the Group had to pay contributions for the Federal Old Age, Survivor and 
Disability Insurance (AVS) and Unemployment Insurance amounting to CHF 182'000.– 
(2010: CHF 227'128.–).

Compensations for former members of governing bodies
CHF 2.53 million was conferred to three Group Executive Committee members having left 
the GEC in 2011. During the year under review, there was no other compensation conferred 
to former members of governing bodies in relation with their former activity as governing 
bodies or not conforming with market practice, neither by Bobst Group SA or  
its subsidiaries. 

In 2010, there was no compensation conferred to former members of governing  
bodies in relation with their former activity as governing bodies or not conforming with 
market practice, neither by Bobst Group SA or its subsidiaries.

Options
There are no options programs.

Additional fees and remunerations
Honorariums of CHF 390'667.– have been billed to Bobst Group SA by CapDconsulting Guttmann, 
Lussy-sur-Morges, owned by Mr. Alain Guttmann, member of the Board of Directors of 
Bobst Group SA, and of CHF 2'879.– by BLR & Partners, Thalwil, whose associate, Mr. Ulf Berg,  
is member of the Board of Directors of Bobst Group SA.

Loans granted to governing bodies
No loans or guarantees are granted to members of the Board of Directors or the Group 
Executive Committee or parties closely linked to them.

Share ownership
The total number of Bobst Group SA shares owned as at 31 December 2011 by non-executive 
members of the Board, by Group Executive Committee members and by persons closely 
linked to them was as per the table thereafter:
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Note 40 (continued)
Board and Executive compensation disclosures as required by Swiss law

Non-executive  
Members of the Board

Number of shares  
owned

Group Executive  
Committee Members

Number of shares  
owned

Charles Gebhard 2'000 Jean-Pascal Bobst 5'544
Thierry de Kalbermatten 210 Attilio Tissi 2'300
Hans Rudolf Widmer 900 Erik Bothorel 515
Michael W.O. Garrett 2'000
Total 2011 5'110 Total 2011 8'359

The total number of Bobst Group SA shares owned as at 31 December 2010 by non-executive 
members of the Board, by Group Executive Committee members and by persons closely 
linked to them was:

Non-executive  
Members of the Board

Number of shares  
owned

Group Executive  
Committee Members

Number of shares  
owned

Charles Gebhard 2'000 Jean-Pascal Bobst 4'005
Thierry de Kalbermatten 90 Christian Budry 3'851
Christian Engel 1'000 Claude Currat 5'296
Hans Rudolf Widmer 900 Hakan Pfeiffer 3'143
Michael W.O. Garrett 2'000 Pierre-Yves Mueller 600
Total 2010 5'990 Total 2010 16'895

Persons closely linked to the non-executive members of the Board and to the Group 
Executive Committee members are their spouses, their children under the age of eighteen, 
any legal entities that they own or otherwise control, or any legal or natural person who is 
acting as their fiduciary.

Note 41
Risk assessment disclosures as required by Swiss law

As part of the Group risks and opportunities management system, a systematic procedure 
for identifying and assessing risks and opportunities as well as for implementing 
appropriate risk control mechanisms is in place. 

During the risk assessment, Group units evaluate the financial impact of the most 
significant ones on their results.

The outcome of the assessment and the approved measures are summarized in a report 
which is made available to the Group Executive Committee member who is responsible for 
the unit.

In addition, a risk evaluation and prioritization is prepared by the Group Executive 
Committee. The result is discussed with the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors.

Financial risk management is described in more detail in note 3 to the Group’s 
consolidated financial statements.
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Status 31 December 2011

 Holding company        

Switzerland Bobst Group SA, Prilly CHF 17'810'002     � 

 
 Affiliated companies        

Germany Bobst Beteiligungsgesellschaft GmbH, Hamburg EUR 9'407'771 100.0 C   �

 Bobst Group Deutschland GmbH, Meerbusch EUR 2'000'000 100.0 C  �  

 Steuer GmbH, Leinfelden-Echterdingen EUR 5'601'000 100.0 C � �  

 Fischer & Krecke GmbH, Bielefeld EUR 1'534'000 100.0 C � �  

Belgium Bobst Group Benelux NV, Berchem EUR 124'000 100.0 C  �  

Denmark Bobst Group Scandinavia ApS, Copenhagen DKK 125'000 100.0 C  �  

Spain Bobst Group Iberica, S.L. Barcelona EUR 700'000 100.0 C  �  

France Bobst SA, Antony, (branch) – – – –  �  

 Martin, Villeurbanne EUR 11'360'000 100.0 C � �  

 Rapidex SM., Angers EUR 562'328 100.0 C � �  

United Kingdom Bobst Group (UK Holdings) Ltd, Redditch GBP 24'478'115 100.0 C   �

 Bobst Group (UK & Ireland) Ltd, Redditch GBP 2 100.0 C  �  

 General Vacuum Equipment Ltd, Heywood GBP 4'000'100 100.0 C � �  

Italy Bobst Group Italia SpA, Piacenza EUR 6'486'000 100.0 C � �  

Poland Bobst Group Polska Sp. Z o.o., Lodz PLN 50'000 100.0 C  �  

Russia Bobst Group Vostok LLC., Moscow RUB 200'000 100.0 C  �  

Switzerland Asitrade AG, Grenchen CHF 1'000'000 100.0 C � �  

 Bobst SA, Prilly CHF 30'409'730 100.0 C � �  

Czech Republic Bobst Group Central Europe spol. s r.o., Brno CZK 100'000 100.0 C  �  

Tunisia Bobst Group (Africa & Middle East) Ltd., Tunis TND 10'000 100.0 C  �  

Brazil Bobst Group Latinoamérica do Sul Ltda, Itatiba BRL 34'696'041 100.0 C � �  

United States Bobst Group North America, Inc., Roseland USD 575'960 100.0 C  �  

Mexico Bobst Group Latinoamérica Norte S.A. de CV, Mexico MXN 200'000 100.0 C  �  

China Bobst (Shanghai) Ltd, Shanghai CNY 52'216'742 100.0 C � �  

Gordon Ltd, Hong Kong HKD 10'000 65.0 C � �

Bobst Group Hong Kong Ltd, Hong Kong USD 2 100.0 C  �  

India Bobst India Private Ltd, Pune INR 235'311'400 100.0 C � �  

Indonesia PT Bobst Group Indonesia, Jakarta IDR 885'000'000 100.0 C  �  

Japan Bobst Group Japan Ltd, Tokyo JPY 200'000'000 100.0 C  �  

Malaysia Bobst Group Malaysia SDN. BHD., Petaling Jaya MYR 250'000 100.0 C  �  

Singapore Bobst Group Singapore Pte Ltd, Singapore SGD 100'000 100.0 C  �  

Thailand Bobst Group Thailand Ltd, Bangkok THB 25'000 100.0 C  �  

 Associated companies        

Germany Duo-Technik GmbH, Lauterbach EUR 72'000 40.0 E �   

Germany BHS Group, Weiherhammer EUR 6'000'000 30.0 E �  �

C = Full consolidation method   E = Equity method
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 DECEMBER  
OF BOBST GROUP SA

In million CHF

2011 2010

Assets Participations and loans to affiliated companies 601.5 491.3
 Other financial fixed assets 0.0 0.0

Financial fixed assets 601.5 491.3

Miscellaneous receivables from affiliated companies 1.0 0.8
Miscellaneous receivables  0.1 0.7

 Other financial assets 0.0 28.0
Cash and cash equivalents (including own shares) 115.4 120.3
Prepaid expenses 2.6 2.8
Current assets 119.1 152.6

Total assets 720.6 643.9

Liabilities Share capital 17.8 17.8
 Reserves: — general 7.2 7.2
   — own shares 1.4 1.4
 Available earnings: — balance carried forward 133.4 124.6
   — profit for the year 4.3 8.8
 Equity 164.1 159.8
       
 Debenture bonds 500.0 350.0
 Provisions 1.7 1.7
 Non-current liabilities 501.7 351.7
     
 Debenture bonds 0.0 120.0
 Debts to affiliated companies 41.5 0.4
 Short-term debts 13.3 12.0
 Current liabilities 54.8 132.4
    
 Total liabilities and equity 720.6 643.9
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PROFIT AND LOSS STATEMENT OF BOBST GROUP SA

In million CHF

     2011 2010

Income Income from affiliated companies 33.2 50.4
   Income on disposal of financial assets 0.0 0.0
     Financial income 0.7 1.6
   Total 33.9 52.0
    
Costs Administration and other costs -8.3 -9.3
   Financial costs -21.3 -25.9
    Allocation to depreciations and provisions 0.0 -8.0
    Total -29.6 -43.2
     
    Profit before income tax 4.3 8.8
    Income tax 0.0 0.0
    Net profit 4.3 8.8
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AND PROPOSAL FOR THE APPROPRIATION 
OF AVAILABLE EARNINGS (BOBST GROUP SA)

Accounting principles

General
Bobst Group SA is the holding company of the Bobst Group. The annual accounts are 
prepared in accordance with the Swiss law and with generally accepted principles.

Conversion of foreign currencies
The transactions in foreign currencies are converted to Swiss francs (CHF) at the prevailing 
rate on the date of the transactions. The necessary provisions for exchange rate variances 
are made when preparing the Balance Sheet.

Participations and receivables related to investments
The participations and loans are carried at their gross acquisition values, reduced 
by necessary provisions. The evaluation of the participations covers essentially the 
profitability, this in accordance with the principle of prudence.

Explanatory notes for various elements

A. Balance sheet

Participations and loans to affiliated companies
The complete list of affiliated companies of the Bobst Group is found at the end of the 
consolidated financial statements. This list also provides information concerning the 
activities of each entity.

2011 2010

Subdivision:
Participations 339.1 307.6
Loans to affiliated companies 262.4 183.7
Total 601.5 491.3

Cash and cash equivalents
These include, for CHF 1.4 million, own shares for which the details are provided in note 27  
of the consolidated financial statements.

Share capital
The information concerning the share capital, as well as the details of the major 
shareholders, are found in note 27 of the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AND PROPOSAL FOR THE APPROPRIATION 
OF AVAILABLE EARNINGS (BOBST GROUP SA)

Debenture bonds
Amount: CHF 100.0 million
Length: five years, fixed
Maturity: 23 July 2013   
Rate: 41/8%
Quotation: SIX Swiss Exchange

Amount: CHF 250.0 million
Length: six years, fixed
Maturity: 22 June 2015   
Rate: 5%
Quotation: SIX Swiss Exchange

Amount: CHF 150.0 million
Length: three years, fixed
Maturity: 5 May 2014
Rate: 2¾%
Quotation: SIX Swiss Exchange

Contingent liabilities
2011: guarantees CHF 212.9 million
2010: guarantees CHF 218.3 million

B. Profit and loss statement
All the incomes and expenses concern exclusively the activities of the Holding company and 
require no special comments.

C. Board and Executive compensation disclosures
The disclosures required by the Swiss Law on Board and Executive compensation are shown 
on pages 114 to 119.

D. Risk assessment disclosures
The disclosures required by the Swiss Law on Risk assessment are shown on page 119.

In million CHF

Proposal for the appropriation of available earnings 2011 2010

Carried forward 133.4 124.6
Reduction of capital, net of transfer of own shares reserve 0.0 0.0
Dividends unpaid on own shares 0.0 0.0
Profit for the year 4.3 8.8
Total 137.7 133.4

           
The proposal is as follows:
Dividend of CHF 0.00 / CHF 0.00 per share 0.0 0.0
Balance to retained earnings 137.7 133.4
Total 137.7 133.4
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129Certain statements in the annual report, including but not limited to those regarding 
expectations for general economic development and the market situation, expectations for 
customer industry profitability and investment willingness, expectations for Company 
growth, development and profitability and the realization of synergy benefits and cost savings, 
and statements preceded by “expects”, “estimates”, “forecasts” or similar expressions, are 
forward-looking statements. These statements are based on current decisions and plans as 
well as on currently known factors. They involve known and unknown risks and uncertainties 
which may cause the actual results to materially differ from the results currently expected 
by the Company.

Potential risks and uncertainties include such factors as general economic conditions, 
foreign exchange rate fluctuations and interest rate fluctuations, competitive product  
and pricing pressures, the Company’s operating conditions, and regulatory developments.

The annual report is available in English and French.
In case of doubt, the English version prevails.
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